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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Goldin
Properties”), | am delighted to present the annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year”).

The Year marked wide recognition for Goldin Properties’ satisfactory
performance and strengths in the capital markets and property
sector. Notably, its capabilities of capitalising on the continued
recovery in real estate market for its sustainable development was
fully appreciated.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRERESS

Achievements

Goldin Properties had an impressive accomplishment in the capital
market during the Year by becoming a constituent of the Hang
Seng Composite MidCap Index (HSMI) since 8 September 2014. It
has also been covered by the Hong Kong Stock Link, and thus has
become tradable under the pilot scheme of Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect. Launched on 17 November 2014, Shanghai-Hong
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Kong Stock Connect is a ground-breaking programme that enables
mutual access to stock markets between Mainland China and Hong
Kong. The scheme allows Mainland investors to directly invest in
eligible shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and gives
Hong Kong and international investors direct access to eligible
shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Such a scheme will
enhance the liquidity in the capital markets of both Mainland China
and Hong Kong.

The Company was also included in the list of the Morgan Stanley
Capital International (MSCI) China Index constituents on 1 June
2015 in recognition for its significant growth and achievements.
The inclusion in this leading market index will definitely enhance
the Company’s reputation in the global capital market and stoke up
investors’ interest in Goldin Properties.
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Achievements — continued

Moreover, on 13 January 2015, the Company won the “Significant
Business Improvement Award” at the Top 100 Hong Kong Listed
Companies 2014 jointly organised by QQ.com and Finet Group Ltd.,
for expansion of its business scale.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Business Review

Market Overview

Against the backdrop of volatile and challenging global economy
in 2014, China’s economy shifted down to a slower growth amid
its restructuring. According to China’s National Bureau of Statistics
(“NBS"), the country’s gross domestic product (“GDP") growth
slowed to 7.4% in 2014, mainly due to a housing glut, soaring
debts and overcapacity in many industries. Such factors are likely to
erode the economic growth in 2015.
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Business Review — continued

Market Overview — continued

Nevertheless, the country’s property market has shown signs
of bottoming out and a gradual recovery thanks to a range of
supportive government policies, including the cancellation of the
home purchase restrictions in some cities, loosening mortgage
restrictions, the People’s Bank of China ("PBOC")'s move to lower
the reserve requirement ratio and to cut benchmark interest rates
further. All of these measures were rolled out in the fourth quarter
of 2014 and the first quarter of 2015. The latest data from NBS
indicated improvement of the property market as the government’s
stimulus policies have begun yielding effect. Property sales have been
recovering and the momentum is expected to continue well into the
second quarter of 2015.

Echoing the recent national policies, more and more provincial and
municipal governments further eased or removed restrictive policies
on home purchases. In October 2014, Tianjin Municipal Bureau of
Land Resources and Housing Administration and five other municipal
government departments issued a joint statement stipulating that
potential home buyers in the city, both local and migrant, were
no longer required to provide any home certificate, tax fulfillment
certificate and social insurance certificate, thus effectively lifting
restrictions on home purchase. Overall, the relaxed national policy on
home purchase bodes well for the property market.
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Business Review — continued

Market Overview — continued

A fast-growing Chinese city, Tianjin ranked third in the country with
a 10% GDP growth in 2014, just behind Chongging and Guizhou,
according to NBS. Tianjin's economy is experiencing strong growth
momentum with the actual utilised foreign investment reaching
RMB6.365 billion in 2014, up 10.5% year on year, according to
the Tianjin Municipal Bureau of Statistics. To add impetus to the
development of the Bohai Economic Rim which surrounds Beijing
and Tianjin, the State Council has approved the establishment of
Tianjin Binhai Hi-tech Industrial Development Area (“Tianjin Hi-
tech Area”) as the first national high-tech industrial development
zone. The zone is also an integral part of Binhai New Area in Tianjin,
a prime location which is set to benefit from the developments.
The Binhai New Area enjoys a convenient transportation network
and a high degree of economic openness. Our signature mega-
integrated property development flagship project, Goldin
Metropolitan (“Goldin Metropolitan” or the “Project”), which
is strategically located in that area and consists of an international
central business district (“CBD"), luxury residential properties and
prestigious leisure facilities, will continue to be the highlight of
Tianjin's property market. With its competitive advantages, Goldin
Properties is well-positioned to benefit from the above-mentioned
government policies on the property market and regional economic
development as well as the positive outlook for Tianjin’s property
market.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Business Review — continued

Goldin Metropolitan

Featuring a mesmerising architectural design and a unique
approach to the art of living, Goldin Metropolitan is a meticulously
designed urban complex to accommodate three essential elements
in life — family, work and leisure. Intended to help the residents
achieve a perfect work-life balance, Goldin Metropolitan satisfies all
these three essential needs with its major facilities, namely the CBD
which features an accommodating and advanced modern design,
a stylish, prestigious and low-density residential estate Fortune
Heights that embodies the concept of a new luxurious living, and
Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club where the extravaganza of
the time-honoured and elegant sport is hosted with the support of
world-class leisure facilities, including Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan
Polo Club Hotel.

Just a 20 minutes’ drive or a 15 minutes’ trip by metro (Line 3) from
Tianjin’s downtown, the mega-integrated property development’s
flagship project targets the upper-class, high-end property market
and is designed to meet the needs of high-end domestic and
foreign property buyers. An estimated investment of US$10 billion
has been budgeted for the Project, which will be completed by
2016 in phases.

An architectural masterpiece of unprecedented scale undertaken by
internationally acclaimed architectural consultancies, construction
companies and the Group’s professional team to guarantee
the quality, aesthetics and functionality of its designs, Goldin
Metropolitan will have gross floor areas (“GFA") of approximately
1,890,000 square metres and the construction of the remaining
parts is well on schedule. The project will serve as an eloquent
testimony to the Group's aspiration to be a world-class metropolitan
property developer with its niche in high-end integrated property
projects. The Group’s international experience and management
expertise will facilitate the development of Goldin Metropolitan
where you would expect to find comprehensive residential and
business facilities for its residents and tenants in a great metropolis.

Central Business District

Showcasing Goldin Metropolitan’s state-of-the-art architecture,
the CBD will consist of the 597-metre-high grade-A office building
Goldin Finance 117, high-rise twin towers, a mega high-end
shopping mall, cultural and recreational facilities, an international
convention and exhibition centre, a distinctive boutique hotel
and deluxe serviced apartments. Notably, Goldin Finance 117,
featuring a “walking stick” design topped with a sparkling
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Business Review — continued

Central Business District — continued

diamond, will probably become the world’s fifth tallest building
when it is completed by 2016. This bold, modernist structure, with
its powerful geometric forms, will occupy a commanding position
in Tianjin’s skyline. The CBD is poised to take advantage of the
pending coordinated development of Beijing and Tianjin, and will
morph into a new commercial hub of Tianjin.

We are pleased to announce the remarkable progress in the CBD
construction for the Year. Goldin Metropolitan’s iconic skyscraper
Goldin Finance 117 is now the newest addition to the Tianjin's
architectural landscape. The construction of this premium office
skyscraper has been on schedule with its core wall constructed
to the 114th floor (or equivalent to approximately 555 metres). It
will be finished by 2016. By virtue of its magnitude and grandeur,
Goldin Finance 117 was rated as one of China’s new iconic
buildings in the “2014-2015 China New Landmark Constructions in
100 Cities”, an annual study of new landmarks under construction
in the country which was jointly organised by China Index Academy
and China Real Estate Index System. Meanwhile, the super-
structure works of the second phase of CBD which would include
twin towers, a concert hall, a boutique hotel and an international
convention and exhibition center and the sub-structure works of
the third phase of CBD are well underway.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Business Review — continued

Central Business District — continued

The target clientele includes a broad spectrum that encompasses
international and domestic sizeable enterprises, multinational
corporations and first-tier global brands. All the buildings there
are available for lease or sale, and the Group commences soliciting
tenancy for the CBD.

Fortune Heights

Fortune Heights is a high-end residential property project which
is built in a low-density layout and features both aesthetic and
functional designs of an environment for the residents’ spiritual
pursuits. This property project consists of about 700 residential units
in the form of villas, townhouses and high-rise apartment buildings
with combined GFA of approximately 208,800 square metres in
Phase One. The successful sales of the properties in Phase One
bodes well for Phase Two of Fortune Heights, which will have GFA
of about 501,000 square metres and is scheduled to be completed
by 2015. The home owners or tenants there will be able to enjoy a
wide range of community facilities and services, and will have the
educational needs of their children well taken care of at the Maple
Leaf International School — Tianjin Huayuan. Fortune Heights, the
luxury residential zone of the Project, will embody the Group’s idea
that “Elite Community Counts”. This also reaffirms Fortune Heights
as Tianjin’s most desirable residence.

As our signature residential project, Fortune Heights won the “China
Property Awards — Annual City Award (Tianjin)” for the second
consecutive year in September 2014 from China Business News, a
reputable financial media group in the country, in recognition of
its stunning European-style designs and the Group’s capability of
constructing a high-quality mega-integrated property project.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 12
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Business Review — continued

Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club

Embodying the elegance and nobility of the aristocracy from the
past, polo aptly reflects Goldin Metropolitan’s positioning as a
prestigious property project. The Group has brought a classical
touch to contemporary urban lifestyle by hosting international
tournaments of the time-honoured sport regularly at Tianjin Goldin
Metropolitan Polo Club since its opening in November 2010. The
890,000-square metre world-class polo club, which is an important
part of the Project, comprises an international polo clubhouse, a
167-room luxury hotel, specialty restaurants, two polo fields of
international standards, stables and other ancillary facilities. It has
become one of the best polo clubs in the world, thus enhancing the
Project’s status.

Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club, with its high reputation, has
built a strong global network by forming ties with 11 reciprocal
clubs over the world, including those in the U.K., France, Italy, the
U.S.A., Argentina, New Zealand, Singapore, Indonesia and India.

Since 2012, the Federation of International Polo and the Chinese
Equestrian Association have held its prestigious annual tournament
Fortune Heights Super Nations Cup at Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan
Polo Club. In the first week of October 2014, four professional
polo teams from Argentina, England, Hong Kong and the U.S.A.
gathered at our modern, well-equipped polo club to vie for
championship of the third Fortune Heights Super Nations Cup.
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Business Review — continued

Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club — continued

Furthermore, the Group title-sponsored the world’s largest snow
polo tournament Fortune Heights Snow Polo World Cup 2015
like we did in previous years since 2011, and has made Tianjin
Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club the venue for the tournament.
This global sport event was also jointly hosted by the Federation
of International Polo and Chinese Equestrian Association from 28
January to 8 February 2015. It was the fourth year Tianjin Goldin
Metropolitan Polo Club held the Snow Polo World Cup, attracting
thousands of guests and substantial media coverage from home
and abroad.

With its strong international connections and strategic location in
Tianjin Hi-tech Area, Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club Hotel
was selected to be the venue of Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation
(“APEC") Emerging Industry Forum on 7 and 8 November 2014.
The forum is part of the APEC China Day 2014, of which a series
of activities were organized in Beijing and Tianjin. It is believed that
more international conferences will be held in the hotel and more
investors will explore development opportunities in Tianjin Hi-tech
Area, which will benefit the Company’s project.

Prospects

Tianjin, with a population of 14 million, is a major port city in
Northern China that neighbours the country’s capital Beijing.
To prepare for the pending Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated
Development Program, the State Council announced in December
2014 its plan for setting up a free trade zone in Tianjin so as
to give a fresh impetus to Tianjin’s economic restructuring and
development, and the measure is expected to attract much
domestic and foreign investment in manufacturing, trading, logistics
and tourism, thus driving the reform of the city’s services, financial
sector and industries. The extension of the inter-city high-speed
railway between Beijing and Tianjin, and that between Tianjin and
Baoding as well as the well-developed Tianjin section of the Beijing-
Qinhuangdao Expressway will facilitate the continuously deepening
cooperation between Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei. All these policies
and developments will favour Tianjin's property market, and Goldin
Metropolitan, as a grand project in the city, will stand to benefit
from them.
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Prospects — continued

Goldin Metropolitan, which will become the most impressive iconic
landmark in the Bohai Economic Rim with its comprehensive, high-
end residential and business facilities, will allow the Group to fully
capitalise on Tianjin Free Trade Zone and the pending economic
integration of Beijing and Tianjin. It will also become a hub of the
metropolis by giving essential support to Tianjin's rapid economic
growth. The high quality of Goldin Metropolitan has already earned
the Company a good reputation among both local and international
investors, boding well for the upcoming residential and commercial
property projects there. Construction of the other parts of the
Project is progressing on schedule, and we look forward to a
greater success when the entire flagship project is completed.

Goldin Properties aspires to become a world-class metropolitan
integrated property developer, and will do its best to realise
the visionary project with the highest standard. It will grasp the
opportunities arising from the pending economic integration of
Beijing and Tianjin by contributing to Bohai Economic Rim'’s further
economic development.

We will also seek new opportunities to replenish our land bank in
prime locations elsewhere with the aim of sustaining the Company’s
long-term business development.

Acknowledgement

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
Group's shareholders, investors and business partners for their trust
and support. Goldin Properties has earned wide recognition in the
property sector and the capital market for its overall exceptional
performance. | would like to thank my fellow Board members,
the senior management team and all the staff for their unstinting
efforts, teamwork and contributions. Looking ahead, we will work
to sustain the Group’s growth and maximize shareholders’ returns.

Pan Sutong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
SEHEEFAN DI

Results

For the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$569 million (31 March
2014: approximately HK$2,793 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 80%. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
82% decline in recognized revenue from the sales of residential
properties in Phase One of Fortune Heights to approximately
HK$475 million (31 March 2014: approximately HK$2,680 million)
during the Year. The Group is adopting a moderate approach
in releasing the residential units, with the anticipation of the
completion and maturity of the whole Goldin Metropolitan project
in the near future. The property sales accounted for 83% of the
total revenue for the Year (31 March 2014: 96%). Net profit for
the Year decreased by 23% to approximately HK$655 million
(31 March 2014: approximately HK$856 million). The Chinese
government has adopted a range of stimulus policies, including the
relaxation of the home-purchase restriction, loosening mortgage
restrictions, lowering the reserve-requirement ratio and cutting
benchmark interest rates further, to revive the flagging property
market during the second half of the Year. In view of the subscribed
and contracted residential property sales, the Board is confident
about the success of the high-end integrated flagship project Goldin
Metropolitan which is also noted from grasping the opportunities
from the continuous deepening cooperation in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
region.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Working capital and debts

The Group’s working capital as of 31 March 2015 was
approximately HK$2,212,376,000, representing a decrease of 52%
when compared with the approximately HK$4,585,710,000 as
of 31 March 2014. The decrease in the balance of cash and cash
equivalent to approximately HK$15,318,000 as of 31 March 2015,
represented by 99% from approximately HK$1,453,579,000 as of
31 March 2014, was primarily attributable to the payment made
for trade and construction cost payables before the year ended 31
March 2015. The current ratio of the Group changed from 1.84
times as of 31 March 2014 to 1.29 times as of 31 March 2015.

The loan advanced from Goldin Special Situations Limited, a related
company in which Mr. Pan Sutong has a beneficial interest, was
approximately HK$7,473,247,000 as at 31 March 2015 (31 March
2014: HK$5,019,123,000). During the Year, expiry date of the loan
was extended to 31 December 2016.

Gearing ratio (total debt to total assets) of the Group was
maintained at a healthy level of 22.9% (31 March 2014: 19.0%).
On the other hand, as at 31 March 2015, the ratio of total
liabilities (including total trade and construction cost payables, bank
borrowing, obligations under finance leases and loan from a related
company) to total equity was 83.3% (31 March 2014: 56.0%).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's transactions and assets are primarily denominated in
Renminbi. The Group does not expect any materially adverse effects
of the exchange rate fluctuation. Nevertheless, the Group continues
to monitor closely its exposure to the exchange rate risk, and is
prepared to manage against its exchange rate risk, if necessary.
The Group continues to exercise a strict control policy and did not
engage in any speculative trading in debt securities or financial
derivatives during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER B MK I

Commitments

As of 31 March 2015, the Group had commitments of
approximately HK$18,428,000,000 (31 March 2014:
HK$17,914,000,000).

For the commitments, the future committed capital expenditures
which are to be incurred mainly for properties for sale and
investment properties under construction up to 2018 are
HK$5,745,000,000 and HK$12,669,000,000 respectively (31 March
2014: HK$4,435,000,000 and HK$13,454,000,000 respectively).

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: Nil).

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As of 31 March 2015, the Group had 999 employees (31 March
2014: 1,059 employees). Staff costs for the Year (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$346,297,000
(31 March 2014: approximately HK$301,142,000). The Group
offers competitive remuneration to its employees. Subject to
the performance of the employees, the Group may provide
discretionary bonuses and/or grant share options to the employees
as an incentive for their continued contribution. In addition to using
an industry average as reference for setting remuneration, other
benchmarks which are used include prevailing market conditions
within the general framework of the Group’s remuneration system.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) are committed to the establishment and maintenance
of good corporate governance practices and procedures to
safeguard the interests of all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and to enhance accountability and transparency.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year"”), the
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best practices
of Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except
for the following deviations:

(@ Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
Under this code provision, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual for a balance of power and authority.

Currently, Mr. Pan Sutong is serving both as the Company’s
chairman and chief executive officer. However, the Board
considers that this situation will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company. This is because the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals with
demonstrated integrity. Further, decisions of the Board are
made by way of majority voting. The Board believes that this
structure is conductive to strong, prompt response and efficient
management and implementation.

(b) Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code
Under this code provision, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (“INEDs”) are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company
under their appointment letters. The Board believes that such
practice will offer stability at the Board level while at the
same time, independence is safeguarded by the necessary
rotation, retirement and re-election procedures which involves
shareholders” approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRS

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Relevant Employees

The Company has adopted the terms of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The
Company has made specific enquiry of each of its directors (the
"Directors”) regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code
during the Year, and all Directors confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

Relevant employees of the Company, who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities, have been requested to comply with
provisions similar to those terms in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

Board Composition
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond

Mr. Li Huamao

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin

Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa

INEDs

Mr. Lai Chi Kin

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors — continued

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the management team within the
control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “"Remuneration Committee”), nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) of the Company. Further details of these
committees are set out in this corporate governance report.

The Board is collectively responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which were
prepared on a going concern basis. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Also, there is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the
auditor.

INEDs

Pursuant to rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three INEDs. All of the INEDs have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.

For INEDs who has served the Company for more than 9 years, his/
her further appointment will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the Shareholders at the general meeting and
the papers to the Shareholders accompanying that resolution
will include the reasons why the Board believes he/she is still
independent and should be re-elected.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRS

Board of Directors — continued

Corporate Governance Function

The Board has delegated the following duties and responsibilities in
respect of the corporate governance functions of the Company to
the Executive Committee:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the
Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Executive
Committee has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

During the Year, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with
the INEDs without the presence of the Executive Directors. Details
of their attendance record are set out in the following table:
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Number of Meeting Attended/
Number of Meeting Held

HESBAE FHEETRE

Mr. Pan Sutong EERSA
Mr. Lai Chi Kin REEREE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carman REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BERIE LT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the Year. Additional
meetings would be arranged, if and when required. Notices of
at least 14 days are given for regular Board meetings and the
Company also aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board
meetings.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings were held. At the
Board meetings, the Directors discussed and formulated overall
strategies for the Company, discussed and approved annual and
interim results, and other material transactions and developments
of the Group. Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Board
were sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively
in a timely manner.

Details of each Director’s attendance record during the Year are set
out in the following table:
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Number of Meetings Attended/
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HESBERY ESSSRETREY

Mr. Pan Sutong EEREE
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun [EEEE
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TRERFEE
Mr. Li Huamao FEXSE
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin mEB A
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa PRAE 2+
Mr. Lai Chi Kin REEREE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai HEHET

Directors’ Training

In order to ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant and to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills, the Company has encouraged and funded suitable
trainings for Directors to participate in continuous professional
developments. The Directors have provided to the Company their
records of continuous professional development during the Year.

Besides, the Company Secretary also provides Directors with (i)
updates on significant development and amendments in the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time and (ii) monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and the latest development to enable the
Board to discharge its duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRS

Board Meetings — continued EEEeeE &
Directors’ Training — continued BRI -&

A summary of training received by Directors during the Year TREJIBIFEZIRME 2L EERAEERFR
according to the records provided by the Directors is set out in the  ESZHEINZHE

table below:
Type of continuous
professional development
Name of Directors Esng BEEXEBRREZER
(Note 1)
(BiaE1)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Pan Sutong ERRIBIT A A
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun FEEE LA A C
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TRkt A, C
Mr. Li Huamao FER S E A C
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin "ERLA A, B, C
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa RAEB L+ A, C
INEDs BE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin RER S E A C
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL A, B, C
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai HEEIEL A, B, C
Notes: fitet -
1. A:Reading regulatory updates 1. A EEESYEHES
B: Attending relevant seminars, workshops, conferences and/or forums B: HEiERAE I ek e
C: In-house training from external solicitor C : SMEBRAMER (2 A EBEE I

2. All of the abovementioned trainings are relevant to the Group’s business, 2. RIAFTEIRISRAEENER CEER  ARIKE
the corporate governance, rules and regulations, accounting, financial or gt USRS ERER NEERERET -
professional skills and/or directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, which may be modified from time to time,
in accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Lai Chi Kin,
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, with Mr. Lai
Chi Kin acts as the chairman. The Audit Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and can access to
independent external professional advice in accordance with the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

3. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual and interim reports and accounts, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein; and

4. to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available from
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRS

Board Committees — continued

Audit Committee — continued

During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were
held for, amongst other things, considering and reviewing the
annual and interim results and reports, the external auditor’s audit
findings and other audit issues, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the effectiveness of the internal control system and
the re-appointment of the external auditor. The chief financial
officer of the Company was present at each of such meetings to
report, explain to and answer questions from the members of the
Audit Committee regarding the financial reporting findings and
effectiveness of the internal control systems implemented by the
Company. Draft and final versions of the minutes of such meetings
were sent to the Audit Committee’s members for their comment
and records respectively in a timely manner.

Details of each Audit Committee member’s attendance record
during the Year are set out in the following table:
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Number of Committee Meetings Attended/
Number of Committee Meetings Held

HEZSSSBAE ZEERETRE

Mr. Lai Chi Kin (Chairman) RS E(EE)
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BERIE LT

Remuneration of External Auditor

The Company has engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
("Deloitte”) as its external auditor. During the Year, fees paid/
payable to Deloitte and PRC local auditors of the Group for audit
services was approximately HK$4,157,000 and HK$591,000,
respectively and for non-audit services was approximately
HK$217,000, which included fees for the provision of tax services.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees — continued

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which may be modified from time to
time, in accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely,
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (INED), Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of the
Board) and Mr. Lai Chi Kin (INED), with Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
acts as the chairman. The Remuneration Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and can access to
independent external professional advice in accordance with the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

1. to formulate and make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.

During the Year, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held for reviewing, considering and endorsing the remuneration
packages proposed for all Directors and senior management of the
Company. Draft and final versions of the minutes of such meeting
were sent to the Remuneration Committee members for their
comment and records respectively in a timely manner.
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PREBHRS

Board Committees — continued

Remuneration Committee — continued
Details of each Remuneration Committee member’s attendance
record during the Year are set out in the following table:

HEZ B G EKB 2 HFELE

Number of Committee Meeting Attended/
Number of Committee Meeting Held

HEZESEENE ZE88RRTAH
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (Chairman) SEXEL(FE) 71
Mr. Pan Sutong EERSA ”n
Mr. Lai Chi Kin R EER e 11

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of the Board), Mr
Lai Chi Kin (INED) and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (INED), with Mr.
Pan Sutong acts as the chairman. The Nomination Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and can
access to independent external professional advice in accordance
with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alias, to
review the structure, size and diversified composition of the Board,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assess the independence of INEDs and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.
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Board Committees — continued

Nomination Committee — continued

Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in code provision A.5.6
of the CG Code, the Company adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Policy is summarized as follows:

1. In designing the Board’'s composition, diversity of Board
members will be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service (the “Objective Criteria”).

2. The candidate(s) for all Board appointments will be considered
against the Objective Criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of the Board diversity.

3. The ultimate decision on the appointment of Board members
will be based on merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Year, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
for (a) evaluating the performance and contribution of each of the
retiring Directors during the last financial year of the Company and
the period thereafter up to the date of evaluation; and (b) assessing
the independence of INEDs.

Details of each Nomination Committee’s member’s attendance
record during the Year are set out in the following table:
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Number of Committee Meeting Attended/
Number of Committee Meeting Held

HEZEESHAE ZEESRBETRE

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman) EEREE(EE)
Mr. Lai Chi Kin REEREE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
from the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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EREBRS

Board Committees — continued

Executive Committee

The Board established the Executive Committee with written terms
of reference. The Executive Committee comprises two members,
namely Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of the Board) and Mr. Wong
Hau Yan, Helvin (Executive Director), with Mr. Pan Sutong acts as
the chairman. The Executive Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and can access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.

The Executive Committee meets periodically or by way of circulation
to discuss/deal with the daily and ordinary operating matters of the
Company as well as to perform the corporate governance functions
of the Group, details of which are set out in the terms of reference
of the Executive Committee which are available on the Company’s
website.

During the Year, a meeting of the Executive Committee was held
for the purpose of performing the corporate governance duties.

EXERUTHTERES  UHTEHEBEEE -
HWITZESREMEKE  EFBREE(EFE:
FIREZRBAE(ITES)  HPERBRLEEE
TFE-HTREEREHRTRERABITEBER
EEHFEBATREARRANBRSIBILEEE
8 o

WITR B S EHEH B BEMXIT AR, EIE
ARRIAER—REESEH  URBTAKELE
BIAREE - BREABHENATRE S 2 BESRE -
XARARARRIWEER -

RAFER TR BERTREZ - UWETDR
XEBRE -

Number of Committee Meeting Attended/
Number of Committee Meeting Held

HEZSSEBAE ZEERETRE

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman) EEREE(EE)
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin mEBGAE

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company
and reports to the Chairman of the Board. She is responsible for
advising the Board for corporate governance matters, and ensuring
the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.

For the Year, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has

complied with paragraph 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group in order to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

During the Year, the Board has assessed and strengthened the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
Audit Committee conducted periodic reviews of their assessment
and provided valuable recommendations on the internal control
system of the Group. The assessment covers all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Board is not aware of any significant
areas of concern which may affect the shareholders.

The internal audit department of the Group performs regular audit
reviews on internal control system in order to identify any business
risks, control deficiencies and safeguard the interests of the Group.

The Group will use its best endeavor to further improve the Group's
internal control system to ensure achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

Shareholders’ Right

Shareholders’ enquiries

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication
Policy”).

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share registration and related matters to the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders who wish to put enquiries to the Board and relating to
the Group’s corporate matters shall send their enquiries in writing
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office at
22/F, Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central,
Hong Kong or by email at info@goldinppt.com who will ensure
these enquiries to be properly directed to the Board. Besides,
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Right — continued

Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may request the Company to convene general
meetings in accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as well as the provisions set out
in the Company’s articles of association, a copy of which has been
uploaded on the websites of the Company at www.goldinppt.com
and the Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk.

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals for the Company’s
consideration at the general meetings can send their written
proposals stating the objects therein to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s registered office. However, Shareholders must hold
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a
right to vote at general meetings as at the date of submitting the
proposal in order to qualify for sending the proposal. Collective
number of shares can be from a single person or multiple
shareholders.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the value of strong communication with its
Shareholders, both individual and institutional and its potential
investors. The Company believes that effective communication with
the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Company’s business performance
and strategies.

The Company formulated the Shareholders Communication Policy
internally to ensure that Shareholders and potential investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders and potential investors to engage actively with
the Company.

In order to develop and maintain a continuing Shareholders and
investors’ relationship programme, the Company has established
various channels of communication with Shareholders and potential
investors including but not limited to (i) the annual general meeting
which provides a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board directly; (ii) printed copies of
corporate communication required under the Listing Rules; and
(iii) updated and key information about the Group as well as
information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange are all
made available on the Company’s website.
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Communication with Shareholders — continued

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and potential investors, and will regularly review the Shareholders’
Communication Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

During the Year, the Company held an annual general meeting on
28 August 2014 and the attendance record of the Directors is set
out in the table below:

PREBHRS

BERREE-&
HERRHBERRAREERAERBUE Yo%
SRR AT IR BB AR K
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Number of General Meeting Attended/
Number of General Meeting Held

Name of Directors BEEHR HERRAERE BRRASRTRE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Pan Sutong EEBSAE ”n
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun AR E kL ”n
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TEREE 7
Mr. Li Huamao FERLE 71
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin |mERSLAE 71
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa PRAEBE LT on
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITEE

Mr. Lai Chi Kin TRARER S 171
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXE L on
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BEIET ”n

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also
about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate
culture. We will continue to review and, where appropriate,
improve our current practices on the basis of our experience,
regulatory changes and developments. We welcome any views or
suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve the
Company’s transparency.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SESENSRERBAS

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong, aged 52, is the founder of the Group. Mr.
Pan is a controlling shareholder, the Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer, an Executive Director, the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pan
is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group. Mr.
Pan has accumulated extensive experience in finance and property
development in Hong Kong and the PRC over the years. Mr. Pan
is also a controlling shareholder, the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530).

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, aged 41, joined the Group in 2006 as General
Manager of China Division, oversees the Group’s China businesses.
Mr. Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in April 2008. Mr. Zhou is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou acted as legal
counsel and held senior management posts in various corporations
in the PRC, Hong Kong and Singapore. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Dalian Maritime University with a bachelor degree in International
Maritime Law. Mr. Zhou has accumulated extensive experience in
corporate administration, finance, legal, international trade and
public relations.

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond, aged 56, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Ting is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Ting is a registered
architect of the State of California, the United States and the
Architects Registration Board of Hong Kong. Mr. Ting obtained a
bachelor degree in Science (Architecture) and Architecture from the
University of Southern California, and is a member of the American
Institute of Architects, the National Council of Architectural
Registration Board, the United States and the Hong Kong Institute
of Architect. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ting was a director of
P&T Group Limited. Mr. Ting has over 31 years of experience in
architecture, and in the management and co-ordination of a variety
of projects in South East Asian region, especially Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors — continued

Mr. Li Huamao, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in August 2010. Mr. Li is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from the business
faculty of Tianjin University with a bachelor degree in Construction
Management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was a director of
Tianjin Hi-Tech Development Company Limited, a company listed
in the PRC. Mr. Li was also a general manager of Tianjin Hi-Tech
Property Development Company Limited and a general manager
of the operating department of Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group
Company Limited. Mr. Li has accumulated extensive management
experience in the development and investment in real estate
industry in the PRC.

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin, aged 41, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in August 2010. Mr. Wong
joined the Company in 2008 and is a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is the general counsel of
the Company and responsible for overseeing the Group’s legal,
corporate and merger and acquisition matters. Mr. Wong obtained
a bachelor degree in Laws from The Manchester Metropolitan
University in the United Kingdom and was admitted as a solicitor in
Hong Kong and in England and Wales. Mr. Wong is also a graduate
of Stanford University Senior Executive Leadership Program. Mr.
Wong is also an executive director and general counsel of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with its shares listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 530). Besides, Mr. Wong is also the deputy chairman
of the supervisory board of Gigaset AG, a listed company in
Germany. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong was a special
counsel of Baker & McKenzie specializing in real estate mergers
and acquisitions, corporate joint ventures and public corporate
compliance matters.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKSREEBAS

Executive Directors — continued

Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa, aged 48, re-joined the Group in
2013 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in February 2014. Ms. Chan is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. Chan is responsible for property investment,
property management and sales and marketing in the property
sector of the Group. Prior to re-joining the Group, Ms. Chan was
an executive director of certain group companies of Wing Tai
Properties Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 369). Ms. Chan holds a Master of Science Degree
in Marketing from Edinburgh Napier University. Ms. Chan is a
fellow member of The Chartered Institute of Marketing, associate
members of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, aged 79, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2002. Mr. Lai is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Lai is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, and has extensive
experience in accounting and auditing sectors.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 36

BITES-&

BREELZL - 485% R - ZE—=FEHMALEE
YR —E—NF - ARZERETRRATES - R
LEMEERARRETHBARCES - RZLA
BEAKEMEImZYERE  MEREEREER
MmERE - EEMMARNKER - RETEEKSE
HWEBRDR (REAER L - BHSE - 369)
ETRERRIZATES -RRLHAET EREL

DRBMIGEHESELEMN - RA T AKTT
BEEBEEREE EXFMAEMBERER

/E\uiﬁm?—a @é\ °

BYFHITES

REBKE - 795 N -TT-F+-AREEA

ARFBUNAITES - REENAAAAERE

REXFRAMERERREZAEIAA - Ry

EREBGHAAE AN GHTAEAREE -
S REH T EEAUELR -

SIRMEERABR AR 3R 2015



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent Non-executive Directors — continued

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2004 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. Ng has more than 26 years of experience in
professional accounting and corporate finance in Hong Kong, the
PRC, the United States and Europe. Dr. Ng is a practicing certified
public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, and
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Dr. Ng received her Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Juris Doctor Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Master of Laws Degree in Corporate and Financial Laws from The
University of Hong Kong, Master of Business Administration Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Master of Professional
Accounting Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
Master of Science in Global Finance from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and Leonard N. Stern School of Business
of New York University. Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-
executive director of eSun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 571), 1010
Printing Group Limited (Stock Code: 1127) and Global International
Credit Group Limited (Stock Code: 1669), all being listed companies
in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2004 and
is @ member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng
obtained a Doctor of Science Degree from the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, the United States and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada. Dr. Cheng had held management positions in various
technology companies, and was in charge of funding technology
companies when he was with the Government of Hong Kong. Dr.
Cheng is currently engaged in environmental protection projects.

Senior Management

The abovementioned Executive Directors of the Company are
members of senior management of the Group.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT
EEERS

The board of directors (“"Board” or “Directors”) of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year").

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion
and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 4 to 18 of this Annual Report. This discussion
forms part of this director’s report.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are shown in Notes 44 and 36 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 171 of this
annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of
the Group.

Environmental Policy

The Group recognizes the importance of environmental
sustainability against modern ecological challenges. To enhance
environmental awareness and encourage daily participation among
staff in the continuous improvement of environmental protection,
the Company sets up energy conservation and carbon reduction
guidelines so as to minimize negative environmental impacts,
reduce wastage and maximize energy efficiency which in turn
provides a green and eco-friendly working environment for the
staff.

Besides, the design of the Group’s Goldin Metropolitan project
covered the aspect of environmental protection, energy
conversation, waste management through Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (“LEED") Certification. For example,

Energy and atmosphere:
e Light pollution reduction-automatically turn-off during non-

business hours and provide manual override switch for all non-
emergency lighting in Back of House
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Environmental Policy — continued

e Minimum energy performance and optimize energy
performance by conducting energy simulation study, such as
better facade performance/more E&M energy efficient systems

e Refrigerant management by using environmental friendly
refrigerant (no Chlorofluorocarbon)

Materials and resources:
e Material reused
Indoor environmental quality:

e Designated air-condition system to provide direct outdoor
airflow measurement device capable of measuring the
minimum outdoor air rate with an accuracy of +/-15%of
design minimum outdoor air rate in all non-densely occupied
spaces.

e By using low emitting materials (Adhesives/sealants/paints/
carpets)

Directors of the Company

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond

Mr. Li Huamao

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin

Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Kin

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai

Pursuant to article 105 of the articles of association (the “Articles”),
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond, Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin, Mr.
Lai Chi Kin will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on or around 28 August 2015
(the “2015 AGM") by rotation. Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond
and Mr. Lai Chi Kin being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the 2015 AGM while Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin has
decided not to stand for re-election.
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Directors of the Company — continued

There is no disagreement between Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin and
the Board and there is no matter which needs to be brought to the
attention of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”).

The term of office of each Director, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”), is for a period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
Company'’s subsidiaries during the Year and up to the date of this
report are available on the Company’s website.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Permitted Indemnity

According to the Articles and subject to the Companies Ordinance,
every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no Director shall be
liable for any loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to
or be incurred by the Company in the execution of the duties of
his/her office or in relation thereto, provided that it shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Companies
Ordinance.

Biography of Directors and Senior Management

Biography of Directors and senior management are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2015, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which were notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Interests in ordinary shares

EERESTHRAERRORARER
0z HE

RIZ-RAF=A=+—0 EEREARAHKSTT
BABRAR R SEAARREE (E& R E5 RS
EEPI([ 5 RAERG ) EXVED) &It K HE

B EEREESRAEEBEXVEETRESSD

HEMERRARAREBHERSHAAERA A (B
TR (BRERERBEEF RS KR Z 251G
NWRRBIERBREB 2w ) - N HR AR AR
HREFERAIEIS2GAE T2 Bl AmERs @ 5k
RIRE 2 FraE 5 Em R B[ LR A ) Mier1Frsk
BT AESETESRZNIEESTA([EEST
Al DZBME AR B ME R FTH ST

kb

hu)

Approximate

Long position/short Number of percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity shares held shareholding
EEpE #E/ KR 5% BREROEE RESNE DL
(Note 1)
(Hfet1)
Mr. Pan Sutong Long position Interests held as beneficial 2,297,814,998 64.41%
owner and through controlled (Note 2)
corporations
EEETE e ERERERAR (Hy:22)
MXEEBRE 2R
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun Long position Beneficial owner 280,000 0.01%
BEExE e EREAA
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Long position Beneficial owner 900,000 0.03%
Edmond
TEREE e EREAA
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.03%

BERKL

R
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares — continued

(b) Interests in underlying shares

As at 31 March 2015, there were share options of the
Company (“Share Options”) held by the Directors. Details of
such Share Options, duly granted to the Directors pursuant to
the share option schemes of the Company, which constitute
interests in underlying ordinary shares of equity derivatives of
the Company under the SFO are set out in the section headed
“Share Options” of this Directors’ report.

Notes:

1. Asat 31 March 2015, the total number of ordinary shares of the Company
("Shares”) in issue was 3,567,747,535 shares.

2. Asat 31 March 2015, 170,303,571 Shares were held by Mr. Pan Sutong
("Mr. Pan”) in his personal capacity, 2,011,741,427 Shares were held by
Goldin Group (Investment) Limited (“Goldin Group (Investment)”), the
immediate holding company of the Company and 115,770,000 Shares
were held by Clear Jade International Limited (“Clear Jade”). Clear Jade
was 100% owned by Mr. Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) was 100%
owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real
Estate Financial”), the ultimate holding company of the Company, and
Goldin Real Estate Financial was 100% owned by Mr. Pan. Accordingly, Mr.
Pan was deemed to be interested in 2,011,741,427 Shares held by Goldin
Group (Investment) and 115,770,000 Shares held by Clear Jade. Goldin
Group (Investment), being a holding company of the Company, is also an
associated corporation of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had, as at 31 March
2015, any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholder’s Interests under SFO

As at 31 March 2015, the substantial shareholder (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
was as follows:

FTERRBREIS R ARG 2 S

RIZ-AF=A=+—8 RARAROTHESE
RIEE H R B IGBIEXVE 2 R 35 MK A
AARR BB RCHNARRIRE S L AEGHFE
BOIHFABEF < BRMANESIARB ZETERR
(ARREFEHERTHABRINAT

Approximate

Long position/ Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held shareholding

REAB HE/HE 54 BERHHE REBNBE L

(Note 1)

(K1)

Goldin Group (Investment) (Note 2) Long position Beneficial owner 2,011,741,427 56.39%

=IREEURE)(Hit2) A BmBEAA 2,011,741,427 56.39%
Notes: Bt -

1. Asat 31 March 2015, the total number of Shares in issue was 3,567,747,535
shares.

2. Asat 31 March 2015, Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by
Goldin Real Estate Financial, which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Options

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 27 August
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) was terminated by the
Shareholders at the Company’s annual general meeting held on
23 August 2012 (the “2012 AGM") before its expiration on 26
August 2012. At the 2012 AGM, the Shareholders have approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme of the Company (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”) in substantially similar terms and
conditions as those of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
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Share Options - continued

A summary of those terms applicable to the outstanding Share
Options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme has been disclosed
in the Company’s 2012 Annual Report, while a summary of the
principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is designed to (a) provide incentives
or rewards to the grantees for their contribution to the Group and
motivate them to strive for future development and expansion of
the Group; (b) strengthen the relationship between the Group and
its employees and executives; and (c) enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all Share Options to be granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of the adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme provided that
the Company may seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh
such limit. Moreover, the maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding Share Options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum
entitlement of each participant under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme in any 12-month period is 1% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. Any further grant of Share Options in excess of this 1%
limit must be separately approved by the Shareholders in general
meeting with the grantees and his/her associates abstaining from
voting.

The period during which a Share Option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
Share Option may be exercised more than 10 years from the date
on which the Share Option is granted. The minimum period for
which a Share Option must be held before it can be exercised is
determined by the Board upon the grant of a Share Option. Each
grantee is required to pay HK$1 as a consideration for the grant of
Share Options.

The subscription price of the Share Options under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme shall not be less than whichever is the highest of
(a) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of Share Options; and (b) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of Share Options.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme will expire on 22 August 2022.
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Share Options — continued BRE-&

As at 31 March 2015, the total grant date fair value of unexercised W-Z—RAFE=FA=+—0 R{TFEZHREBE
vested options and unvested options, measured in accordance with BN KRB 2 BN EE B 2 @R FE T
the accounting policy set out in note 3 to the financial statements, IZBIEHEWAIMHE 2 ST HETE - DA
amounted to HK$211,946,000 and HK$54,139,000, respectively. 211,946,000 7 Jt % 54,139,000 7t - — & F B
Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for & » SR EREZFEABRREARA QR — Y
one ordinary share of the Company. Assuming that all the options A% - BREM BB KITEZERER-_Z—HF
outstanding as at 31 March 2015 are exercised, the Company will = A=+ —HE7{# - KA QB HEBSEBRIA
receive proceeds of HK$490,657,000. 490,657,000/ 7T, ©

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options ~ F&RIFENAFE RAA TR B S
movements during the Year:

(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme @ —EE-_FHERKRETS
(i) Directors (i) E=
Number of share options
BREHR
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
Name of Date of price Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe Outstanding
Director grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2014 Year Year Year  at31.3.2015
RZB-M%F RZB-1%
Bz it B MA-B REAEER REAFER  RAEER =ZA=1-A
i R ﬁﬁﬁ T8 R AT 2R BT BAH W RAT 6
BT
(Note 1)
(Hit1)
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun 3.8.2009 327 382010t02.8.2019 302,727 - - - 302,727
EBELE 382010282019
3.8.2009 327 3.8.2011102.8.2019 302,727 - - - 302,727
3.8.201122.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 3.8.2012102.8.2019 403,636 - - - 403,636
3.8.2012%2.8.2019
27.3.2012 269 27.9.2012 t0 26.3.2022 333,333 - - - 333,333
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.12.2013 t0 26.3.2022 333,333 - - - 333,333
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.3.20151t0 26.3.2022 333,334 - - - 333,334
27.3.2015%£26.3.2022
2,009,090 - - - 2,009,090
Mr. Ting Kwang 3.8.2009 327 3.8.2011102.8.2019 605,454 - - - 605,454
Yuan, Edmond 3.82011%2.82019
TEREE 3.8.2009 327 3.82012102.8.2019 807,272 - - - 807,272
3.82012%2.82019
27.3.2012 269 27.9.2012 t0 26.3.2022 333,333 - - - 333,333
27.9.2012%£26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.12.20131026.3.2022 333,333 - - - 333,333
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.3.2015t0 26.3.2022 333,334 - - - 333,334
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,412,726 - - - 2,412,726
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Share Options — continued BRE-&
(@) 2002 Share Option Scheme — continued @ —EZ_FERES-E&
(i) Directors - continued (i) E=-&
Number of share options
BREHR
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
Name of Date of price Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  Outstanding
Director grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2014 Year Year Year at31.3.2015
R-ZE-IF R-2-%F
52 B 5B MA-B RAEEA  WEEER WAEER =A=t-H
fe B h{sﬁ T KA BRH B BAM HARTE
BT
(Note 1)
(Hit1)
Mr. Li Huamao 3.8.2009 327 382010t02.8.2019 302,727 - - - 302,727
FERAL 3.8.2010%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 3.82011102.8.2019 302,727 - - - 302,727
3.8201122.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 3.82012t02.8.2019 403,636 - - - 403,636
3820122282019
2732012 269 279.2012t026.3.2022 333333 - - - 333,333
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69  27.12.2013 t0 26.3.2022 333,333 - - - 333,333
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.3.20151t0 26.3.2022 333,334 - - - 333,334
27.3.2015%£26.3.2022
2,009,090 - - - 2,009,090
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, ~ 3.8.2009 327 3.8.2012102.8.2019 397,095 - - - 397,095
Helvin 3.82012%2.8.2019
BZEEAE 27.3.2012 2.69  27.12.2013 10 26.3.2022 333,333 - - - 333,333
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.3.20151t0 26.3.2022 333,334 - - - 333,334
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
1,063,762 - - - 1,063,762
7,494,668 - - - 7,494,668
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ESERS
Share Options — continued BRE—-8
(@) 2002 Share Option Scheme — continued @ —EE_FERES-E&
(i) Employees (other than Directors) (i) EE(ESBRIM)
Number of share options
BREHE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Exercise price Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe Outstanding
Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2014 Year Year Year  at31.3.2015
RZE-mF R-Z-1%
Bk MA-B  RAEER RAEFERN  WAEER ZA=1-A
RitiAH ﬁfﬂ% i MR [RE6 27k BAN W AT
HK
B
(Note 1)
(Hiit1)
20.4.2004 141 20.4.2004 t0 19.4.2014 572,945 - - (572,945) -
20.4.2004%19.4.2014
28.9.2005 131 28.9.2005 t0 27.9.2015 1,968 - - - 1,968
28.9.2005%27.9.2015
27.11.2007 6.50  27.11.2007 t0 26.11.2017 8,072,727 - - - 8,072,727
27.11.2007£26.11.2017
3.8.2009 327 382010t02.8.2019 1,124,941 - - (181,636) 943,305
3.8.2010%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 382011102.8.2019 1,892,041 - - (181,636) 1,710,405
3.8.2011%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 382012102.8.2019 2,534,863 - (12,109) (242,182) 2,280,572
3.8.2012%2.8.2019
21.4.2010 (Note 2) 314 214201110 20.4.2020 1,210,465 - (55,000) - 1,155,465
(Wi#2) 21.42011%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 (Note 2) 314 214201210 20.4.2020 1,235,113 - - - 1,235,113
(fi2) 21.4.2012%204.2020
21.4.2010 (Note 2) 314 21.4.20131020.4.2020 1,687,220 - - - 1,687,220
(fi2) 21.42013%20.4.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 2) 372 10.8.2011109.8.2020 366,298 - (60,545) - 305,753
(Wi#2) 10.8.2011%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 2) 372 10.82012t09.8.2020 366,298 - (39,455) (21,090) 305,753
(fi2) 10.82012%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 2) 372 10.8.2013109.8.2020 488,400 - - (80,728) 407,672
(fi2) 10.8.2013%9.8.2020
27.3.2012 269 279201210 26.3.2022 7,043,314 - (100,000) (243,332) 6,699,982
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 2712201310 26.3.2022 7,043,314 - (100,000) (243,332) 6,699,982
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.3.2015t0 26.3.2022 7,043,372 - - (343,336) 6,700,036
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
40,683,279 - (367,109) (2,110,217) 38,205,953
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SRS
Share Options — continued BRE-&
(@) 2002 Share Option Scheme — continued @ —EZ_FERES-E&
(iii) Other participants (iii) Htt28E
Number of share options
BREHA
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Exercise price Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe Outstanding
Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2014 Year Year Year  at31.3.2015
R=B-0% R=B-1%
Bk MA-B  RAEER RAEFER  WAEER ZA=1-A
RiLAH TEE  {THH H AT BEH B BANM W AT
HK$
BT
(Note 1)
(Hit1)
20.4.2004 141 20.4.2004 t0 19.4.2014 371,037 - - (371,037) -
20.4.2004%19.4.2014
3.8.2009 327 3.82010t02.8.2019 2,123,305 - - - 2,123,305
3820102282019
3.8.2009 327 382011102.82019 2,346,132 - - - 2,346,132
3.8.2011%22.8.2019
3.8.2009 327  382012102.8.2019 3,128,182 - - - 3,128,182
3.82012%2.8.2019
21.4.2010 314 214201110 20.4.2020 3,409,227 - - (15,136) 3,394,091
21.4.2011%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 314 214201210 20.4.2020 3,575,178 - - (15,136) 3,560,042
21.4.2012%20.4.2020
2142010 314 214201310 20.4.2020 4,766,984 - - (20,182) 4,746,302
21.4.2013%220.4.2020
10.8.2010 372 10.8.2011109.8.2020 605,454 - - - 605,454
10.8.2011£9.8.2020
10.8.2010 372 1082012 109.8.2020 605,454 - - - 605,454
10.8.2012£9.8.2020
10.8.2010 372 10.8.2013109.8.2020 807,273 - - - 807,273
10.8.2013£9.8.2020
27.3.2012 269 27.9.2012t0 26.3.2022 10,749,989 - - (33,333) 10,716,656
27.9.2012%£26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.12.2013 t0 26.3.2022 10,749,989 - - (33,333) 10,716,656
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.3.20151026.3.2022 10,750,022 - - (33,334) 10,716,688
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
53,988,226 - - (521,491) 53,466,735
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ESERS
Share Options — continued BRE-&
(@) 2002 Share Option Scheme — continued @ —EE_FERES-E&
Notes: it -
1. The exercise prices and the number of share options granted on 20 1. BEZZZ_FERETEN _ZZTWFNA -+

April 2004, 28 September 2005, 27 November 2007, 3 August 2009,
21 April 2010 and 10 August 2010 under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme had been adjusted upon the rights issue, as announced by
the Company on 16 February 2012, becoming unconditional on
20 March 2012. Details of which were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 March 2012.

2. Share options granted on 21 April 2010 and 10 August 2010 were 2.
conditionally granted to the employees (other than Directors) of the
Company, subject to the achievement of the performance targets as
determined by the Board.
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- LN
SRS
. . _
Share Options — continued BRE-&
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme b)) —T——FERETS
(i) Directors (i) E=
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
Name of Date of price per Outstanding during the during the during the  Outstanding
Director grant share  Exercisable period at 1.4.2014 Year Year Year  at31.3.2015
R-B-IF R-E-H%F
= B BR mA—-H REFER REFER REEER =ZA=+-8
i3 =E: TEE ORE 8 RATE [25:81] [EXixcd B4 i RITR
HK$
B
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun 28.3.2014 335  283.20151027.3.2024 600,000 - - - 600,000
[AEELE 28.3.2015%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335 283201610 27.3.2024 600,000 . - . 600,000
28.3.2016%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335  283.20171027.3.2024 800,000 - - - 800,000
28.3.2017%27.3.2024
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond  28.3.2014 335  283.2015t027.3.2024 600,000 - - - 600,000
TErxE 28.3.2015527.3.2024
28.3.2014 335  283.20161027.3.2024 600,000 - - - 600,000
28.3.2016%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335  283.20171027.3.2024 800,000 - - - 800,000
28.3.2017527.3.2024
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Mr. Li Huamao 28.3.2014 335  283.2015t027.3.2024 600,000 - - - 600,000
FEREE 283.2015%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335  283.20161027.3.2024 600,000 - - - 600,000
28.3.2016%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335  283.20171027.3.2024 800,000 - - - 800,000
28.3.2017527.3.2024
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin 28.3.2014 335  28.3.20151027.3.2024 600,000 - - - 600,000
EEXRAAE 28.3.2015%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335  283.20161027.3.2024 600,000 - - - 600,000
28.3.2016%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335  283.20171027.3.2024 800,000 - - - 800,000
28.3.2017%27.3.2024
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa  28.3.2014 335  283.20151027.3.2024 300,000 - - - 300,000
RAEZL 28.3.2015%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335 283201610 27.3.2024 300,000 . - . 300,000
28.3.2016%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335  283.20171027.3.2024 400,000 - - - 400,000
28.3.2017%27.3.2024
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
9,000,000 - - - 9,000,000
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ESERS
Share Options — continued BRE-&
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme — continued b)) —E——FEREFI-&
(ii) Employees (other than Directors) (i) ES(E=ERM)
Number of share options
BREHE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Exercise price Outstanding during the during the duringthe  Outstanding
Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2014 Year Year Year  at31.3.2015
R=Z-mE R-Z-1§
R mA—-H REFER REFER WAEER =A=1-H
Rt A ke TEHY HARITE BRY BT BAX HARITE
HKS
BT
283.2014 335 283.20151027.3.2024 8,520,000 - - (360,000) 8,160,000
28.3.2015%27.3.2024
283.2014 335 283.20161027.3.2024 8,520,000 - - (360,000) 8,160,000
283.2016%27.3.2024
2832014 335 283.20171027.3.2024 11,360,000 - - (480,000) 10,880,000
283.2017£27.3.2024
28,400,000 - - (1,200,000) 27,200,000
(iii) Other participants (iii) Ettz8EE&
Number of share options
BRELE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Exercise price Outstanding during the during the duringthe  Outstanding
Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2014 Year Year Year  at31.3.2015
RZB-m% RZZ-1%
Bk mA-B REFER  REAEER  REAFER  ZA=t+-8
RitAH ke TR AT B B BAX HARITE
HKS
AT
2832014 335 283.2015t027.3.2024 4,650,000 - - - 4,650,000
283.2015%27.3.2024
283.2014 335 283.20161027.3.2024 4,650,000 - - - 4,650,000
283.2016%27.3.2024
283.2014 335 283.20171027.3.2024 6,200,000 - - - 6,200,000
283.2017£27.3.2024
15,500,000 - - - 15,500,000
Note: Hiat -
Share Options granted on 28 March 2014 were conditionally granted RIZE—NE=A -+ N\BEEZERETAE IS
to all eligible grantees of the Company (the “Grantees”) subject IR FARATIFFESEERARATEEA]) » BF
to the satisfactory performance/ contribution of the Grantees as ENEE OB TABAZSARERE BB 7
determined by the Board. ER o
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Share Options - continued

The vesting period of the Share Options is from the date of grant
until the commencement of the exercisable period.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately
before the date on which the Share Options were exercised was
HK$4.76 per Share.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share
Options” above, at no time during the Year was the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

During the Year, the Group had transactions with related companies
in which a Director has beneficial interests, details of which are set
out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which any of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors are considered to be in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note
44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
ESERS

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the
Group's five largest customers represented approximately 97.12%
of the Group’s revenue for the Year. The aggregate amount of
revenue for the Year attributable to the Group’s largest customer
for the Year was 83.39%.

For the Year, the aggregate amount of construction costs
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented
approximately 98.27% of the Group’s total construction costs
for the Year. The aggregate amount of construction costs for the
Year attributable to the Group’s largest supplier for the Year was
67.79%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s shareholding, has interests in these customers and
suppliers during the Year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 18 May 2012, the Company and Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited (“GFHL") entered into a framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”) which sets out the principal framework
upon which GFHL and its subsidiaries (the “GFHL Group”) will
sell and the Group will purchase the wine products (including all
bottles of wines, alcoholic liquors, spirits and/or other liquors fit and
intended for consumption as beverage to be transacted between
the GFHL Group and the Group under the Framework Agreement)
(the "Wine Products”) for a term commencing from 18 May 2012
and ended on 31 March 2015.
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Continuing Connected Transactions — continued

The annual caps of the Company for the period from 18 May 2012
to 31 March 2013 and the two financial years ended 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2015 are HK$9.58 million, HK$11 million and
HK$11 million respectively.

During the Year, the GFHL Group sold and the Group purchased
the Wine Products at the amount of approximately HK$1,107,000.
Details of which is set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As Mr. Pan (personally and through his wholly-owned companies)
was beneficially interested in approximately 64.21% and 70.26%
of each of the issued share capital of the Company and GFHL
respectively as at 18 May 2012, the Group is an associate of a
connected person of GFHL and the GFHL Group is also an associate
of a connected person of the Company. As such, the Company
and GFHL are connected persons of each other under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the respective sales and purchases of the Wine
Products by the GFHL Group and the Group constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 18 May 2012.

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above have been reviewed by
the INEDs who have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
2. on normal commercial terms or better; and
3. according to the agreement governing the transactions on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Continuing Connected Transactions — continued

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group
in the normal course of business are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions
which constituted connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules have complied with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the Year and up to the date of this report.

Management Contract
No contract for management and administration of the whole or

any substantial part of any business of the Company was entered
into or existed during the Year.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 56

RFERERS &

ARRIEREBZEBEOREETSEAMASBEMZE
B ERIERRTEERIZ000] ESL T8 B R F|RT T
Bﬁ%?l\%%%ﬁﬁﬂmJ&Q%E%E%EH%MO%TEEE’:‘%
7B LR AP S AR RE A X 5 RO R BRED kK 1 I Bh AT At
SEWEX HIELER - B RE EWRAE
14AS6GEMEA LI ERERFERGER ZE
REBEREM - KATEAEZZBRD LRI 232

ﬁﬁxﬁﬁ

BEALXRS
REERESEBRFPETHEALR S ZHE
ﬁFF BIBIMAMTEAT - RIB LD ARSI

RHRBEBEZHNZHEREALIRHEETE
M %EE‘J%MAE o

BE  HEIEEAQXR LTES
REEER  AAARHAARBARLERE -
8 RO AUET L -
REZABEERE

BEAARD AN GENREESRL - AATR
AEEREFENEEARE DN —HRB LT
RARERBFR 2 ARHRE -

EEEH

RAFEARE LN FEABARAE
EROEBRZEERITHAL -

BB AR

SIRMEERABR AR 3R 2015



Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. Information on the work
of the Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire at the
conclusion of the 2015 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2015 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Pan Sutong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

& 11 % SXEM ¥ S

Deloitte.
=2)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60
to 170, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal controls as
the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

==\
ér B

EmKEMEFAWERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z —E—AF=A=T—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-AE —Z—OF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BdaE FHET BT
Revenue e 7 569,350 2,793,413
Cost of sales $HE R A (178,556) (1,406,995)
Gross profit E7 390,794 1,386,418
Other income E Uz A 9 629 17,254
Marketing costs THI5 8 & K R (76,487) (131,939)
Hotel and polo club other operating TR M BB Eh AR & S
expenses (252,684) (270,989)
Administrative expenses 1THE R (291,602) (320,226)
Foreign exchange (losses) gain, net SNE (B518 ) UnzS F 58 (12,361) 16,637
Finance costs U= 11 (20,962) (24,689)
Increase in fair value of investment BB 7 N IEN
properties 19 679,155 708,312
Fair value gain upon transfer to ERAREMHEZ
investment properties ARG 19 640,294 -
Gains on derivatives PTHET Az W 12 - 20,549
Profit before tax KRB BE A 13 1,056,776 1,401,327
Income tax expense SR IER S 14 (401,910) (545,739)
Profit for the year attributable to owners ZAN AR A A
of the Company B FE R 654,866 855,588
Other comprehensive income Hitt2me= (Bx)
(expense)
Item that may be reclassified HiZpEE A2
subsequently to profit or loss: Err 2 EE -
Exchange difference arising on translation #r&/54M 375
FTEE A& H =58 16,718 (79,972)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AFEHM 2 AW (FX)
for the year 16,718 (79,972)
Total comprehensive income for the year N &R AFENE
attributable to owners of the Company  FE 2 k1258 671,584 775,616
Earnings per share ZRER 16
— basic — B 18.36 HK cents 23.99 HK cents
18.3638 1Ll 23.997511l
— diluted — s 18.14 HK cents 22.86 HK cents

18.147 1l

22.867511
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
% 6 0 ¥k IR X

At 31 March 2015 R=ZE—RF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-1F —ET—HF
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
BiaE FHET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEMERE 17 2,458,285 2,479,908
Ponies = 18 42,650 40,938
Investment properties LB 19 21,027,933 14,823,132
Other assets Hib & 20 - 357,632
Prepaid lease payments TEEERIE 21 238,973 245,151
Intangible assets EREE 22 90 90
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEMXE  BEAREN
property, plant and equipment BrzEf&ke
and ponies 23 17,441 11,289
23,785,372 17,958,140
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 24 67,918 75,582
Properties for sale HEMZ 25 9,516,883 8,038,911
Prepaid lease payments TEHAERIE 21 6,394 6,388
Trade and other receivables, R LS B R R EL At FE ST
prepayments and deposits TENFIB RIES 26 255,271 481,334
Amount due from a related company  fEU —FEREEE QD & F0E 29 1,716 -
Cash and cash equivalents HEREEZEEY 27 15,318 1,453,579
9,863,500 10,055,794
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and construction cost payables FEAS BRFX M SR SRR AN F0E 28 6,183,075 3,618,984
Other payables and accruals E At T FIE R TEIRR B 28 884,894 1,352,888
Amounts due to related companies FESRAE A R)FRIE 29 63,288 44,978
Tax payable FEZFIR 463,525 396,949
Bank borrowing ERITIEFK 30 56,255 56,205
Obligations under finance leases BMEREER
— amount due within one year — —F R EAFRIE 31 87 80
7,651,124 5,470,084
Net current assets mENEEFE 2,212,376 4,585,710
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRLESAE 25,997,748 22,543,850
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBMRRNMBRE

At 31 March 2015 R—Z—HFE=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RfF —T—mF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FHET FABxT

Non-current liabilities EmBAE
Bank borrowing SRITE 30 182,827 238,871

Obligations under finance leases REEREER

— amount due after one year —— & B HAFIE 31 163 250
Loan from a related company RE R ER 33 7,473,247 5,019,123
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 34 1,651,510 1,320,485
9,307,747 6,578,729
16,690,001 15,965,121

Capital and reserves RS K
Share capital % 35 10,925,483 10,923,728
Reserves ] 36 5,764,518 5,041,393
Total equity - G 16,690,001 15,965,121

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 170 were HREE0EZF170E 2 G HREESeN =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 Z—F 4,5 A -+ B#ERFEXM - Wl 51

June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: BEAREE
Pan Sutong Zhou Xiaojun
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
=3 EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
rOEmMEE R K

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HlE =T —hAF = A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALTEEAER
Share-based Equity Capital
Share Share compensation  Translation participants  redemption Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
kit kA& kA&
k& k&R HeRB BERE  SHARR Rodf  REEN it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Th Tin Tin Th Tin T Thn
At 1 April 2013 R-E-=%#QmA-A 178304 10,738,752 172,564 1,009,408 15942 173 3,045,971 15,161,114
Profit for the year KEEERH = = = = = = 855,588 855,588
Exchange difference arising on translation T E 5%
MELENZE - - - (19972 - - - (19972
Total comprehensive (expense) income ~~ AEERTE (5 ) i
for the year k] - - - (19972) - - 855,588 775616
Recognition of equity-settled share-based 2R E RN
payments RiyaER 3 - - 2410 - - - - 2470
Exercise of share options e 65 6,434 (2578) - - - - 391
Lapse of share options BRESH - - (2.89) - - - 2,89 -
Transfer due to the abolition of parvalue ~ RER AR A
upon the application of the Companies  ($6222 JEERR(R
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (note) AERER(E) 10745359 (10,745,186) - = = (173) = =
At 31 March 2014 R-T-mE=A
==f 10,923,728 = 191,561 929,436 15,942 - 3,904,454 15,965,121
Profit for the year FEEER - - - - - - 654,866 654,866
Exchange difference arising on translation T EE5 £
MELEAZE - - - 16,718 - - - 16,718
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2 AN LE - - - 16,718 - - 654,866 671,584
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ FEZMIRAEE R M
payments AN - - 52,175 = - - = 52,175
Bxercise of share options frfeEaiE 1,75 - (634) - - = = n
Lapse of share options BRERR - - (3,579) - - - 3575 -
At31 March 2015 it Sy
=t-A 10,925,483 - 239,521 946,154 15,942 - 4,562,895 16,690,001
Note: The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares have no par B3t : BRAFHEHI(F622F) MBI - —ME==

value since the commencement date of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) (i.e., 3 March 2014). As of 3 March 2014, share premium and capital
redemption reserve amounted to approximately HK$10,745,186,000 and
HK$173,000, respectively were transferred to share capital due to the
abolition of par value upon the application of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
mMOIMEMNEWRRK

For the year ended 31 March 2015 & Z —E—AF=A=T—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-RE —ET—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Operating activities SV
Profit before tax [ B8 B Sk ) 1,056,776 1,401,327
Adjustments for: VEH T 53 -
Increase in fair value of investment properties KEMEZ AN EEEM (679,155) (708,312)
Fair value gain upon transfer to investment BRI EYE L
properties ATE (640,294) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - R MRIBITE 104,871 122,509
Depreciation of ponies BUCHE 9,253 9,049
Finance costs MER 20,962 24,689
Gains on derivatives PTHETHEZ W - (20,549)
Interest income on bank deposits HRITIFRZ F BN (443) (4,588)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEK
equipment Q) o 281 26
Ponies written off B UTHi A 883 815
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE R SRIE 5 6,394 6.388
Share-based payments expenses VARR(R BERES R 2 B H 52,175 24,470
Unrealised exchange difference RNEIRNE 5 54 (5,454)
Operating cash flows before movements in RetEEESEHAI 2
working capital KERSRE (68,243) 850,370
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (M) 7,714 (767)
Increase in properties for sale SHE MR IN (1,653,212) (2,043,894)
Increase in trade and other receivables, JE LS AR 5% e EL At R Ui SR
prepayments and deposits TEFRIE R IZ S 1 AN (97,759) (167,802)
(Increase) decrease in amount due from a N —REREE AR
related company FRIE (3B 00) iR (1.716) 364
(Decrease) increase in trade and JEA AR SR K EAth FE 1S
other payables IR ) 80 (390,891) 990,806
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to related FERT R R R FIEE M OR D)
companies 425 (1,383)
Cash used in operation KEFTAE S (2,203,682) (371,806)
Tax paid BENHIE (5.820) (1,666)
Net cash used in operating activities L EBFTAIR &R EE (2,209,502) (373,472)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ROWRERERRK
For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE - T —RAF=A=+—HIEFE

2015 2014
—E-RfF —EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Investing activities KE RS
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEWE - BERE (75,434) (20,562)
Acquisition of ponies BEST (11,814) =
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant BEYE  MEMRER
and equipment and ponies Brze ke (12,362) (6,198)
Construction costs paid in respect of investment — FIEEIRE WS
properties under construction BT A (1,076,794) (1,378,762)
Interest received on bank deposits SRITE R 2 B UFIE 443 4,588
Net cash used in investing activities KEEB AR &5 (1,175,961) (1,400,934)
Financing activities BEEE
Interest and finance charges paid BEARF S R E A (20,962) (39,409)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (&8 &M &% (80) (72)
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (56,255) (42,154)
Redemption of convertible bonds fE o] A B IR (B - (226,736)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of R TERE A AE R 1T (D
share options FTiS 718 1,121 3,921
Loan advanced from a shareholder R T ER - A 7AL A
Repayment of loan advanced from a shareholder {E:Z2MERE K - (4,238,500)
Loan advanced from a related company [ PENETEZ 3= N 4,608,227 2,598,837
Repayment of loan advanced from a related BEBEATER
company (2,583,409) (987,314)
Net cash from financing activities BB RS IR SRR 1,948,642 1,942,927
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReMREEEY
cash equivalents Z OB ) I FEE (1,436,821) 168,521
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of EzRE RIREEEY
the year 1,453,579 1,341,536
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ANEE [ SR S B 7 R (1,440) (56,478)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FR2I\EE MBS EEY 15,318 1,453,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 B F5 IR R

For the year 31 March 2015 2 - —RAF=A=+—HIEFZ

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Goldin
Group (Investment) Limited (“Goldin Group (Investment)”),
a private limited company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, and its ultimate parent is Goldin Real Estate Financial
Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”), a private
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
which is ultimately owned by Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”), a
Director and Chairman of the Company, who has controlling
interest in the Company. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” included in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is different from the functional currency
of the Company, Renminbi (“RMB"), as the Company is a
public company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares
listed on the Stock Exchange, where most of its investors are
located and therefore, the Directors consider that Hong Kong
dollars is preferable in presenting the operating results and
financial position of the Group. The majority of the Company’s
subsidiaries are operating in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") with RMB as their functional currency.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 are set out in
note 42.

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=6 B B R KRB 5

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial 2. FEA T REETEBMBRELE

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) A([ BB &R EZER )
In the current year, the Group has applied the following RAFE  AEEEEAUATHBSEAA
amendments to HKFRS(s) and a new interpretation issued ([ EBETMAE ) BEM 2BEBYHBRELE
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants AERT AR Rk —IEFTR] 2% :
("HKICPA"):
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities BB RELERIE105E - REERE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 EE IR E RS 125%
REBSFTERE275
CCHEN)
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and AR ERE325% HEIHERMEER
Financial Liabilities CCHEN) EEIAE
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures AR FE365 FEMEEZA
for Non-Financial Assets (f&5T4) U [el S 5B 5
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and ARG R FE395% PTHETEZESE
Continuation of Hedge (f&5T4) REHEETZ
Accounting F4E
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies A Gl Py BE

==
=
ZB®)-2EBE21%

The application of the amendments to HKFRS(s) and a new RAFEREAEEMBRELENET AR —B
interpretation in the current year has had no material impact TRl ROAEERNANFERBTFEZ
on the Group'’s financial performance and positions for the ISR AR &SRR ERE M SRR ATH
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in BREEBRKEATLE -

these consolidated financial statements.

The impact of the application of these amendments and RAZEBIIAREREZZEHINAT -
interpretation is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
56 B B R KRB 5

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial 2. FEA T REETEBMBRME%E

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity that meets
the definition of an investment entity not to consolidate its
subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in its consolidated and separate financial
statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required
to:

e obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose
of providing them with investment management services;

e commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

e measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of
its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed based
on the criteria set out in HKFRS 10 as at 1 April 2014),
the application of the amendments has had no impact on
the disclosures or the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n B BT §5 4R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the
requirements relating to the offset of financial assets and
financial liabilities. Specifically, the amendments clarify the
meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’
and ‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the
Group does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
that qualify for offset, the application of the amendments has
had no impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 36
remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount
of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill or other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been allocated
when there has been no impairment or reversal of impairment
of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements applicable to when the
recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is measured at fair
value less costs of disposal. These new disclosures include the
fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques
used which are in line with the disclosure required by HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

FERFTR] RASIER] BB IR E %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
56 B B R KRB 5

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial 2. FEREET R ST E BT IEHRE &
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Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39 Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS
39 provide relief from the requirement to discontinue hedge
accounting when a derivative designated as a hedging
instrument is novated under certain circumstances. The
amendments also clarify that any change to the fair value
of the derivative designated as a hedging instrument arising
from the novation should be included in the assessment and
measurement of hedge effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the
Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to
novation, the application of these amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

HK(FRIC) — Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies for the first
time in the current year. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 addresses the issue
as to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy imposed by a
government. The Interpretation defines a levy, and specifies
that the obligating event that gives rise to the liability is the
activity that triggers the payment of the levy, as identified
by legislation. The Interpretation provides guidance on how
different levy arrangements should be accounted for, in
particular, it clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor the
going concern basis of financial statements preparation implies
that an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be
triggered by operating in a future period.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The
application of this Interpretation has had no material impact on
the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation®

Disclosure Initiatives

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employees
Contributions*

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Ventures

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Annual improvement to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycles

Annual improvement to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle*

Annual improvement to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycles

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for the first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and
b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future will not have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities based on the analysis of the Group’s financial
instruments as at 31 March 2015.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add
definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’
which were previously included within the definition of ‘vesting
condition’. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-
based payment transactions for which the grant date is on or
after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of
whether the contingent consideration is a financial instrument
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset
or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and
loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July
2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments
have ‘similar economic characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to
the entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets
are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As
the amendments do not contain any effective date, they are
considered to be immediately effective.
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Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle —
continued

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment
or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards
clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner
consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount of the
asset and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently,
the reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions
the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the
management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of
such compensation is not required.

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment
property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property in
terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012—-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in
a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures required
in relation to transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting
disclosures (introduced in the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
issued in December 2011 and effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013) are not explicitly required for all
interim periods. However, the disclosures may need to be
included in condensed interim financial statements to comply
with HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would result in
the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds being
assessed at currency level. The amendments apply from the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
financial statements in which the amendments are first applied.
Any initial adjustment arising should be recognised in retained
earnings at the beginning of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is presented
elsewhere within the interim financial report but outside the
interim financial statements. The amendments require that
such information be incorporated by way of a cross-reference
from the interim financial statements to the other part of the
interim financial report that is available to users on the same
terms and at the same time as the interim financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n B BT §5 4R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle —
continued

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and with
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). In addition, the requirements
of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial year, as
a result, there are changes to presentation and disclosures of
certain information in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

FTEEHHER-H&

thoh - B BHEN S - A FEFERBEAF
B ENBABBAIERERE A FEFEN
BMABUBHHERBNEZU D ERE R F
“HRRE=F - FEWT

. B-HEARELEENE S HTUR
BIIERAER A BN ERTS 2 BEGR
AR

s FE_ABABEBRAEEXREIEXH
BHATBR B AR (SR BEREN R
BERIN - &

s FoABABEBEREEXRENTIEER
AR -

TE2EAEERAT -

mEIRAEE
RAMBRREEFARRADAMEHER
REMBARZHBRE - HEATER - 8l
AR FESEHINE

o AHBIRETLITEREN

« ESEWIRET LT AEGREEE
BARER &

o FRENBTEHENIMFELZZLR -

MAEEERBERETR L =IAZHREAED - §
—HHA LHREH - AREEEHFEERE
BEHIRERET -

AL BN IS I B 12 BIHZE I R B S BT /BB 8 B AR
BAR  WRREME A BZEH R & EA
B AW E RAFEABANHE ZHE
REZWARFX - REAEERSEGEES
HREAEEKRENBARIZEGEEH I 5
ANFEBREREMEEREHRRA -

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 80 &iRiELRER AT £/ 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n B BT §5 4R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payments arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Business combinations — continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,
when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Business combinations — continued

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e., the date when the
Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts received and
receivable from sales of properties and services rendered in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Hotel operation

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food and beverage sales
and other ancillary services in the hotel are recognised when
the relevant services have been rendered.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Polo club operation

Advertising, VIP Box and ticketing income from polo
tournaments are recognised when the polo events are held.

Revenue from the sale of polo club membership is recognised
on the straight-line basis over the expected life of the
membership.

Project management fee
Project management fee is recognised when service is rendered.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Properties under construction or development for future use
as investment properties are classified as investment properties
under construction.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Investment properties — continued

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
deprecated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FEEHBE-E&

Ponies

Ponies held for provision of polo club related service are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of ponies
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Ponies are derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of ponies. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of ponies is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of ponies and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Other assets

Other assets representing the land use rights being acquired
through the acquisition of assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
of the Company in previous years, which were subject to
completion of the disposal (see note 20 for details), were
carried at costs less any accumulated impairment losses and
were shown as non-current assets. Cost included the cost of
land, construction cost and other development expenditure and
other attributable expenses.

Prepaid lease payments

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the properties are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model, other
assets and properties for sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of the each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets
are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Properties for sale

Completed properties for sale and properties under
development for sale which are intended to be held for sale
in the ordinary course of business are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and are shown as current assets.
Cost includes the cost of land, construction cost and other
development expenditure and other attributable expenses.
Upon completion, the properties under development for sale
are transferred to completed properties for sale.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
properties for sale less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may
be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset/liability and of allocating
interest income/expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts/payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset/liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and deposits, amount
due from a related company and cash and cash equivalents) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for the financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and amount due from a related
company where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable and amount due from a related company
are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion option
derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
liability and conversion option components were classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that would be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
was a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both
the liability and conversion option components were recognised
at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds was carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option derivative was
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds were allocated to the liability and conversion option
derivative in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the conversion option derivative
was charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component were included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies, bank borrowing and
loan from a related company) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
56 B B R KRB 5

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e., the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e., Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
56 B B R KRB 5

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FEEHBE-E&
Leasing — continued ME-&

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model, other assets and properties under
development for sale. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed pension schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income/a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FEEHBE-E&

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Taxation — continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e., based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for a business combination.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to Directors of the Company and
employees and others providing similar services

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested
before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in
the Group's consolidated financial statements until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit
or loss in respect of the value of options in the year. Upon the
exercise of the share options before the commencement date
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (i.e., 3 March 2014),
the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares and
the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the share is recorded by the Company as share
premium. Upon the exercise of the share options on or after
the commencement date of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) (i.e., 3 March 2014), the resulting shares issued are
recorded by the Company as additional share capital. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FEEHBE-E&

Share-based payment transactions — continued

Share options granted to Directors of the Company
and employees and others providing similar services —
continued

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested on
or after 1 April 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based compensation
reserve) or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share option granted vest immediately.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share-
based compensation reserve.

Upon the exercise of the share options before the
commencement date of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
(i.e., 3 March 2014), the amount previously recognised in
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to share
premium. Upon the exercise of the share options on or after
the commencement date of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) (i.e., 3 March 2014), the amount previously recognised in
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited subsequent to
vesting or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of

Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Group has reviewed its investment properties
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred tax on investment
properties, the Group has determined that the presumption
that the carrying amount of investment properties measured
using the fair value model is recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
56 B B R KRB 5

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

4. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of 4. E At HET R At FHPEE

Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The management of the Group
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuer
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The findings are reported to the Directors every half
year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.

Note 19 provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

Fair value of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair values
based on the valuation performed by independent professional
valuer. The valuation of the Group’s investment properties
under construction is determined with reference to the fair
value of the bare land plus construction costs incurred. The
fair value of the bare land has been arrived at by adopting the
comparison approach and making reference to the market
transactions as available in the markets, with adjustments made
to account for various factors including geographical location
of the properties, availability of transportation system and
public facilities and the estimated development period of the
Group's investment properties under construction. The valuer
has also determined on the basis that the Group’s investment
properties under construction will be developed and completed
in accordance with the latest development proposals and taken
into account the construction costs that will be expended
to complete the development as well as developer’s profit
margin to reflect the quality of the completed development.
In determining the fair value, the valuer has based on the
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of
market conditions. In relying on the valuation report of
the independent professional valuer, the management has
exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the method of
valuation and the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the market conditions prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Any changes in the market conditions which
may change the method of valuation and the assumptions used
in the valuation will affect the fair values of the investment
properties of the Group. The fair values of investment
properties at 31 March 2015 was HK$21,027,933,000 (2014:
HK$14,823,132,000).

4, EREHABRMGTHTABREER
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of 4. E At HET R At FHPEE

Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$1,738,515,000 (2014: HK$1,299,401,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In case where the actual future profits generated
are more than expected, additional recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which should be recognised in profit or loss
for the period in which it takes place.

Estimate of the PRC Land Appreciation Tax

The PRC Land Appreciation Tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
allowance and expenditures including sales charges, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax in the PRC. The
details of implementation have been announced by local tax
bureau in Tianjin in the PRC. The Group has not yet reached
the stage to finalise its Land Appreciation Tax calculation and
payments with local tax bureau in Tianjin in accordance with
the relevant local tax regulations. Accordingly, significant
judgements are required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on the management’s best estimates according
to the understanding of the tax rules. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of

Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Recognition and allocation of construction costs on
properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties
under development for sale during the construction stage and
will be transferred to completed properties for sale and charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income upon the recognition of the sales of
the properties. Before the final settlement of the development
costs and other costs relating to the sale of the properties,
these costs are accrued by the Group based on management’s
best estimate. During the development stage, the Group
typically divides the development projects into phases. Costs
that are common to different phases are allocated to individual
phases based on saleable area/gross floor area. Where the final
settlement of costs and the related cost allocation is different
from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease in the
development costs and other costs would affect the profit or
loss in future years.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses regularly whether property, plant and
equipment have any indication of impairment in accordance
with its accounting policy. The Group determines the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment on the
higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell. During the
year, the Directors conducted a review of the Group’s hotel and
polo club properties and determined that those assets were
not impaired after the consideration of the expectations on
the market development and business growth of the hotel and
polo club after the completion of the whole project, including
residential and commercial properties in the same area being
developed by the Group. Accordingly, no impairment loss
was required to be recognized in respect of the Group’s hotel
and polo club properties for the year. The carrying amount of
the Group’s hotel and polo club properties at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$2,332,922,000 (2014:
HK$2,367,472,000).
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of 4. E At HET R At FHPEE

Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Determination of net realisable value of properties under
development for sale and completed properties for sale
Properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$9,516,883,000 (2014: HK$8,038,911,000).
Cost including the cost of land, construction cost and other
development expenditure and other attributable expenses,
are allocated to each unit in each phase based on saleable
area/gross floor area. The net realisable value is the estimated
selling price less estimated selling expenses and estimated cost
of completion (if any), which are determined based on the
best available information. Where there is any decrease in the
estimated selling price arising from any changes to the property
market condition in the PRC, there may be write-down on
the properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits,
as disclosed in notes 35 and 36 and consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company prepare the annual budget taking into account
of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual
budget, the Directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debts or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.
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6. Financial Instruments

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables and deposits, amount due from a related
company, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies, bank borrowing and
loan from a related company. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk
and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to these
kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages and measures.

(@) Categories of financial instruments

6. E@MIT A

AEEZIZEMTABERKREREEMRE
WiERiEE - BR—HEEARNIE  RE
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2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables ERN EWRIE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (PIEHESRIRESZEY) 139,605 1,719,819
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost BESHA AN 14,743,042 9,761,044
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loan from a related company (see

note 33 for details of the loan).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank borrowing (see note 30 for
details of the borrowing). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowing at floating rate of interests so as to minimise

the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on bank deposits. The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
deposits and for floating-rate bank borrowing at the end
of reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 10 basis points increase (2014: 10 basis points increase) is
used for the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. It is expected that the
interest rate will not decrease in the next twelve months

from the end of the reporting period.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher (2014:
10 basis points higher) and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 March
2015 would decrease by HK$165,000 (2014: increase by

HK$1,232,000).
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(c) Foreign currency risk

n B BT §5 4R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

6. TRMITE-—&
(C) ZMNEE [ Bex

Certain other receivables, bank balances, amount due from
a related company, amounts due to related companies,
trade and other payables and loan from a related company
are denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently
do not have a formal currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will further consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of the relevant group
entities at the reporting date are as follows:

AEBERARNR 2ETHMBKFIA - R
TEF B FHRERRRIE - BT
BN BIRIA R AR AR N B At FE 5 IR PA
REERRERGAINERHE - AERER
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Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-0f —T-mEF —E-EF —T—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT TEx FHT
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD")  #&c([#x]) 15,954 19,583 14,424 3,168
United States dollars (“USD") ZE7T([%E5%]) 1,629 96,681 7,537,975 5,065,813
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6. EMITHE-&
(€) MR P — 4B

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(c) Foreign currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% (2014: 5%) increase and decrease in the relevant
functional currencies against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% (2014: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used for
the management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes external receivables and
payables where the denomination of the receivables and
payables is in a currency other than the functional currency
of the lender or the borrower.

A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase
(a decrease) in profit for the year of the Group where the
respective functional currencies strengthen 5% (2014: 5%)
against the relevant foreign currencies.

For a 5% (2014: 5%) weakening of respective functional
currencies against the relevant foreign currencies, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit for
the year of the Group.

BBED N

IR LA &= B R FERA T A B H AR RSN
B R TBR5% (—ZE P4 : 5%) B2
BRE 5% (ZF—UF : 5%) AEEE
AR L IMEE R & I8 Al s 2 B v BURE
LR o BREREDITE BIEAINEETE 2 H
RENEREER » RRFERIRINEEES%
(ZE—UF : 5%) 2 S BFHEHRE - X
&2 T B IEE SN E WK IE K FE N 3RIE -
FEU R IB I BN RIBIAE A E s
BEDAINC EHEHE ©

T ZIES(BE)RTEMeeE Hi8H
INEEFHES% (ZF— U4 : 5%) 8 A&
EF a2 EamORd) o

BB L AREINERES% (=T~
F5%)F - BHAKRBEFREENBKRE
BrAREE -

Hypothetical increase (decrease)
in profit for the year

FEERAN2ZBRLA(THE)
2015 2014
—E-hHEF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
HKD PR IT (109) (684)
usD e 314,596 207,824

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the foreign currency risk inherent in
the financial assets and financial liabilities as at the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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6. Financial Instruments — continued 6. TR &

(d) Credit risk o EERB

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group is responsible for ensuring that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that
the Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
rating. At 31 March 2015, the Group has deposited an
aggregate of more than 80% (2014: 90%) of its bank
balances with two state-owned banks in the PRC. The
Directors of the Company believe that these bank balances
are fully recoverable after considering the financial position
and credit rating of these banks. Moreover, there is no
special restriction on withdrawal of the balances from
these banks.

At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the Group's
concentration of credit risk on trade and other receivables
was mainly in PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and concentration of credit risk on trade and other
receivables which were mainly in PRC, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

RZZE-—RAF=A=+—HR=-ZT—NF
ZA=+t—R AKERMEHZRAEE
Rl RRZZEF I REETREGE W
AMRBERPIE SR ER R EE 2 RE
BZEE  BEAKERIMHERK -

REEREEFERR  AEEEEERER
FEIR RN R H5 hE UK B B BR(E 75 = oS
AEENREHAREHNE B ER 2 TR
Bl &5 - AR EARE 2 2 RIEL R
SRERIRERE - Lt - ARAREFRR
AEBZEERBERERE

AEBEENE TREENRRITERR
PESZEERBRER N_T—AF=
A=+—H X&EEEiRES 0% (=F—MW
F 1 90%) 2 BRITERF R A A R ZR
EIRTT o NARIEEE B E| B LIRITHE
BN RIE B - e E LRI TR
WEmKE - B - HiELRITRIUVTR
e ZEERAERIR S -

R-E-RF=A=+-AR-Z-m%F
SA=+-B - AEEFREHBLERR
HALBHE (S E AR R P E -

BRETREENARTEFRABESZ
EE R SR e R 5 B L A R M AR K
ZEERREEZETETEI  AREY
EEHEAEMENEERRET -

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 111 SiRHERRER AT £3; 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& O\
iR B

81 ¥ ¥ X BT 5E

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(e) Liquidity risk

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 112 SiREERER AT £3; 2015

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manage
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking
facilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities (including
trade and other payables, amounts due to related
companies, bank borrowing and loan from a related
company) and obligations under finance leases. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities and obligations under finance
leases based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

6. ERITH-—&
) MEVEEREL

mBECRBERZRRETENRES
g MESEEREEASERNE - HH
EEHESRRBDECERFTEZEIAE
RBETRBEERER - NEEEBER
RABEIRTEEEERDESRR

TRAGAEESREB(BRENERK
HAiEAFOR - BNBIERRIZR « RTT
fERREARER) KR EHEER 2 F
BRANEMY - ZXxBRESRABELRE
HEBEBRAKEAZFERA 2R
AREREMBE - KREBEMNERAS

Py ==X
HameE °
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Financial Instruments — continued 6. SEWITAE-&
(e) Liquidity risk — continued €) RBELEME &
Repayable
Weighted ~ on demand Total  Camying
average  or less than 36 6months Over undiscounted  amount at
interestrate 3 months months  tofyear  f1-2yeas  2-5years Syears  cashflows 3132015
MR H-3-1F
nEry  BEREE zE AR ReHE =R=t-A

i Z=EAUT AR 3£ -ECE ZERE BN 88 kAR
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000
Thn T T T Thn T T Tin

2015 t8-if
Trade and other payables ERERAMEMNE - 5AT15T6 - - - 1889889 - 6%745 6967405
Amounts due to related FEfBEATRNE

companies - 941 53817 - - - - 63,268 63,288
Bank borrowing st 6.8% 18,209 17,965 3122 67,390 137490 - 276,176 139,082

Obligations under finance leases ~ BT S 4.1% 26 2% 5 105 69 - 09 250
Loan fromarelated company ~~ BELFER 8.0% - pLYEY M3 7979380 - -8 A

5,305,262 314,208 3656 8046875 1627408

15830355 1474329

Repayable
Weighted ~ on demand Total Carying
aerage  orlessthan 36 6months Over  undiscounted ~ amount at
nterestrate — 3months months  tolyear  I-2yeas  2-5years Syears  cahflows 3132014
R RCE-DE
™)  HEXER SE ili Reig A=A

% S=RANT A FF -Ef ZERE RENE g AR
HKS000  HKY000  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000
T T T T Tir Tin T T

2014 “E-QE
Trade and other payables A RAERE - 33mM - - - 107960 - Admger 4401867
Amounts due to related ERBEATAE

companies - 9,038 35940 - - - - 44978 44978
Bank borowing T 15% 19,580 19371 37819 1250 191,690 14,245 355,25 29,076
Obligations under finance leases ~ BT S &R 47% 2% 2 53 105 174 - 34 30
Loan from a related company ~~ BEAFER 80% - 162812 200415 5218238 - - 5583465 5019133

3,350,884 218149 10287 5290863 1271491 14245 10385919 9761374
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(

Fair values measurement of financial instruments

6. RITH &

(f)

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised costs in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their corresponding fair values.

7. Revenue

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of properties, hotel

TRMIAZATETE
eMEERERAGBZ AT EEER AN
™

s TRMEENEBMABZAFEREMN
MBRRERENNMAEEZ RREE
EAETE °

ARREZRA  RAMBHRERPREH
KA Rz eBMEER R AGBREER
HEBATHERS -

BERIEFARBHENE  BEEL - R

operation, polo club operation and project management for SEKNREEER WS MASERFRZ
the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as WA
follows:
2015 2014
—E-AfF —EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Sales of properties YIS 474,788 2,680,022
Advertising, VIP Box and ticketing income RESKLEZES - EEME
from polo tournaments PRELON 71,133 85,001
Hotel operation R T 17,631 20,991
Polo club membership income BrkeefEIlg A 3,175 3,180
Project management fee IHEEEEHR 2,623 4,219
569,350 2,793,413
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8. Segment Information 8. ZHEHR
Information provided to the Executive Directors of the ROMERMFEDMBRIEMEARTNITE
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the E(ANFELERAFE)REZERERAR
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment NRREZMERRBER - EMAREEZ
performance focuses on types of properties or services delivered HRELE  BEEREELUTELE EBHE
or provided. This is also the basis of organisation in the Group, AR o

whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group in
different operating activities.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments IREE BB ELERE - BEmME - A%
under HKFRS 8 are as follows: B2 AT sE RS DRI ¢
1. Property development — developing and selling properties 1. UEER-FEREEVMEREAER

and project management

2. Property investment — leasing of investment properties 2. MERE-HEREME

3. Hotel and polo club operation — provision of hotel 3. BEREHESER - REUBEEEREH
accommodation and related services, food and beverage R7E ~ BHEHE ARSI HEE RS &E
sales and polo club related services and activities EJ)]
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8. Segment Information — continued

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment:

D RPER &

DR R EE
REEZ EEEREBRAREREEDE D
T

Property development Property investment  Hotel and polo club operation Total
ELHE NERE EEREREXH )
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

“E-if  FD0F CR-3F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEL TEn

“3-mE  ZE-Ef Z2-PF ZE-1f  ZT-[F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

TEL TR T TR TiEL

Revenue EXE

External revenue HNlkg 477411 2,684,241 - - 91,939 109,172 569350  2,793413

Inter-segment revenue Dbk - - - - 17,725 18,735 17,725 18,735
Segment revenue AR 477411 2684241 - - 109,664 127907 587,05 2,812,148
Segment profit (loss) HRT(EE) 255,013 1,187.905 1,282,200 679,505 (258,283) (294,823) 1,278,930 1,572,587
Interest income HMSA 443 4,588
Unallocated corporate AARLAEH

expenses (201,635) (171,708)
Finance costs SBER (20,962) (24,689)
(ains on derivatives TETRZN% - 20,549
Profit before tax B AR 1,056,776 1401327

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit/loss represents the profit
earned by/loss resulted from each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, directors’ salaries, interest
income, finance costs and gains on derivatives. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker, being
the Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment revenues are charged at prevailing market rate.

AT RS A D BD 2 & St BUR BRI 3P AN B
B2 gt BRER - DEEN,BEESES
BEH,EE - PRITHER EFFHD
MEBWA - BBBERRITETRAZRERESD
FLE o TR BEERETE (AR BHNT
ER)ERMEERABERRBAN G EE -

7 BRfE SR 1T T 35 B R URER ©
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D RPER &

THEERAR
AEEZBERRBRATREREED BN

8. Segment Information — continued 8.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment: R
Property development Property investment  Hotel and polo club operation Total
EE NERE BEREREEH fazt
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-1f E-WF  ZB-3f “R-Q@E  CE-BfF  ZE2-WF ZE-RF CEF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEn Tim TEn TiEn TEn T
Segment Assets AiEE
Segment assets AR 9709714 8314906  21,059420 15339027 2835928 2871404 33605062 26525337
Unallocated corporate assets  AARATEE 43,810 1,488,597
33648872 28013934
Segment Liabilities AafE
Segment liabilities L[ (1102139)  (1214377)  (5,613,764)  (3,408,606) (351,119) (346,488)  (7,067,022)  (4,969,471)
Unallocated corporate APBARERE
liabilties (9,891,849)  (7,079,342)
(16,958,871)  (12,048813)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

REEDBRAMDEERES DL

e all assets are allocated to reportable and operating

segments other than the Group head office’s corporate
assets, intangible assets, and cash and cash equivalents.
Assets used jointly by reportable and operating segments
are allocated on the basis of the estimated gross floor
areas to be constructed by individual reportable and
operating segments; and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than the Group head office’s corporate
liabilities, amounts due to related companies, bank
borrowing, tax payable, obligations under finance leases,
loan from a related company and deferred tax liabilities.
Liabilities for which reportable and operating segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets.

BAKRBERHBZAREE  BYVEENR
ReMREFEWI  MBEEECHEE
AMERKEDE - AIME REED R
RER 2 EERER ] HRE REEDEHK
B 2 (AT EEEBE R - &

BAEEEHZAREE  BNBEEAR
IR RITER  BEHE  BMEHEER
% BEARERMEERBEARIN A
BREEIREAHREREEDH - AT R
ERBEDBARRBEZABRIBEE
LBl BE -
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8. Segment Information — continued 8. 7HER &
Other segment information HAth o & R}
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or FFAD EBIEm D HEE 2 KA ¢

segment assets:

Hotel and polo
Property development  Property investment club operation Unallocated Total
VELTH NERE EERFHERE il )

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z%-5f 30 Z%-1f _FMF -%-Bf “TMF C-%-Rf “RO0F C%-1fF CEQF
HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

TRn AT TRn  TEr TR TEr TR TEr TR TEn

Additons to property, RENE BER

plant and equipment HE 203 826 474 1927 80,205 19,406 768 532 81,650 22,691
Addtions to ponies RESL - - - - 181 - - - 181 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease R3S

payments B - - - - 6,39 6,388 - - 6,394 6,388
Depreciation of property, plant %+ BER&E

and equipment Vi3 126 14 1,693 1,666 98,788 116437 3,664 3692 104871 122509
Depreciation of ponies ElrnE - - - - 9,253 9,049 - - 9,253 9,049
Loss on disposal of property, — RENE - HERRE

plant and equipment LER - - - - 35 - 4% 2% 281 26
Ponies written off IS - - - - 883 815 - - 883 815
Increase in fair value of REnz2ATH

investment properties i - - 679155 708312 - - - - 679155 708312
Fair value gain upon transfer to ~ ERARENE,

investment properties IS - - 640204 - - - - - 640,204 -
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8. Segment Information — continued 8. PHER &
Geographical information i EE R
The Group’s operations in property development, property NEFEYEERE  YWELERAEREHRS %
investment and hotel and polo club operation are principally B EBEBITEMAPR  T~BEES

located in the PRC, excluding Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external AREAEEREIBEE 7 W ERIBELE
customers is presented based on the location of the operations. WE2% EEAEEIERBEAEZERESR
Information about the Group’s carrying amount of non-current RIB IR S EFERE 27 o

assets is presented based on the geographical area in which
the assets are located.

Revenue from Carrying amounts of

external customers non-current assets

REMBEF 2 Wz FRBEEZREE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-h# —TmEF —E-EF —TmE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR TR FET
Hong Kong 5 2,623 2,633 5,431 8,004
Other regions in the PRC FR B EL A 3 [ 566,727 2,790,780 23,779,941 17,950,136

569,350 2,793,413 23,785,372 17,958,140

Revenue from customers for the year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-—RAF=A=T—HIFE  kKER
contributing over 10% of the Group'’s revenue were generated ZEEREELEETEI0% A ENEFE ZKET)
from the property development segment at the amount of REMEZHRSE(ZZ—NF : WEBRUAK
HK$474,788,000 (2014: property development segment BEREHREEBHI) 2 Was - HBSHER
and hotel and polo club operation segment at the aggregate 474,788,000/ 7T ( —F —PU4F : 2,425,997,000
amount of HK$2,425,997,000). BT -
9. Other Income 9. HAWA
Other income for the year comprises: FRZEMBABLE -
2015 2014
—E-AF —Z—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Interest received on bank deposits RITIFRUELZ 12 443 4,588
Government grants BT ED - 12,490
Others Hib 186 176
629 17,254

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 119 &iRELRERAE £3; 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
56 B B R KRB 5

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five Highest 10. E= - THEBRAZESHES
Paid Employees’ Emoluments [ 7

() Benefits and interests of Directors and the Chief () EBRITHAEAS 2R KRER

Executive

Details of the Company’s Directors’ and the Chief BAEA RMEDI (55622 ) 5383 (1) - (4)IF
Executive’'s emoluments pursuant to section 383(1) — (4) RE62Q2CE(AFI(BRERESNmER)
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Part 2 of the BIYEE2ES » NAREE RITHRAE 2 e
Cap. 622G “Companies (Disclosure of Information about FIBMT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation” are as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2014: BENHEMAZ(ZE—ME : +8)AR
ten) Directors of the Company, which include the Chief AES(RETRES)BEZZMenT

Executive were as follows:

Fees and other emoluments

fERAtHE
Salaries Retirement Share-based
and other benefit payment Total
Fees benefits Bonuses costs  Sub-total expenses emoluments
BB A
HER RIER ERAR
g EfbER) A A gt 28R Hews

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn Tign Tign Tign TR TR FiEn

(note)

(fizF)
Mr. Pan BrE - 22,500 - 18 22,518 - 22,518
Mr. Lai Chi Kin pEREE 40 - - - 410 - 40
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXfEL 341 - - - 34 - 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai HERAEL m - - - VK] - m
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond T &t - 3,798 312 18 4,128 2,040 6,168
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun FEELE - 2,110 152 109 23N 2,040 4411
Mr. Li Huamao FERLE - 1,460 92 95 1,647 2,040 3,687
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin BZERE - 2378 195 18 2,591 2,040 4,631
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa  AE &+ - 4,440 259 18 4717 924 5,641
Total for 2015 “E-RE4H 1,024 36,686 1,010 276 38,996 9,084 48,080
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10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five Highest
Paid Employees’ Emoluments - continued

(i)

Benefits and interests of Directors and the Chief

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive — continued

fn © B F5 3R &= Bif 51

For the year 31 March 2015 HE =T —hF=-A=-+—HIFE

10. EE »

e — &
EERTHAH NS R ER &

)

TRAERKOLEBREHER

Fees and other emoluments

e RAMEHE

Salaries Retirement Share-based
and other benefit payment Total
Fees benefits Bonuses costs Sub- total expenses  emoluments

SRR

5k RINER AR
e AftriaR] Iz KA Nt ZEBR Henm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL AL

(note)

(BzE)
Mr. Pan it = 22,500 = 15 22,515 - 22,515
Mr. Lai Chi Kin BEREE 410 = = = 410 - 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXfEL 341 = = - 341 = 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai HEREL 73 = = - 73 = 73
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond T it = 3,534 289 15 3,838 454 4,292
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun ARERE = 1,942 139 9% 2,176 454 2,630
Mr. Li Huamao TEREE = 1,346 84 87 1,517 454 1,971
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin BZERE = 2,183 178 15 2,376 454 2,830
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anfta Teresa* ~ BAB Lt = 370 = 1 3N 10 381
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey* FRBEE = 2,200 200 7 2,407 835 3,242
Total for 2014 “E-MELE 1,024 34,075 890 235 36,224 2,661 38,885

*  Appointed as a Director on 28 February 2014 ME—A=+/\BEZTAES

#

Note:

Resigned as a Director on 28 February 2014

These represent the estimated value of share options granted
to the Directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to
the Group's accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 3.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under
the paragraph “Share options”

note 37.

in the Directors’ report and
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10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five Highest
Paid Employees’ Emoluments - continued

(0

(i)
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Benefits and interests of Directors and the Chief
Executive — continued

Mr. Pan is also the Chief Executive of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2014: four) are the Directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments
of the remaining one (2014: one) individual was an
employee of the Group, details of whose remuneration are
as follows:

10. 2% TRARREEREHES

)

(il

EERTRAB N R ED &

BWREMBARRARITHAR - EXKE
& B IR EAE BT E AT IR AR5 2 B

RERSFRERNER - EAARRRES
WEAEARBZEF] L2 EMEBAREEE
BEMCERRS THRANTEEX
EE A EARES °

EEMNE

EXEERARRHALT OB (=F
—VF  OR)BRERRESE  REZBE
MEXHE - SR T—R(ZF—MF : —
BIANTRAKERE - EBSFHBOT ¢

2015 2014

—E-AHE —E—HF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

T FET

Salaries and other benefits T4 RHEMET] 2,400 3,244
Bonuses TE4T 200 210
Retirement benefits costs RRTE A AN 9 9
Sub-total /et 2,609 3,463
Share-based payment expenses R BERNHR 2 ER 2,499 =
5,108 3,463
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five Highest 10. = - THEBRAZESHES

Paid Employees’ Emoluments — continued e — &
(i) Employees’ emoluments — continued (i) EEME &
The emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMEN T THIHE
2015 2014
—E-RE —T—mF
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7C23,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,00177C2 5,500,000/ 7T 1 -
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the RZMEFE  NEBIWES NS TARAA]
Group to the Directors of the Company or the five highest EFFAERREZRaHATEASMALRER
paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to join Brsl WSl INAREE 2 e S IERBEREEE
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of REFERNITMER R B E F M E KR B REEMA
office. None of the Directors of the Company has waived < o

or agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 123 &iREZLRER AT £3; 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n 6 B §5 R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

11. Finance Costs . MKEAR
2015 2014
—E-1F —ZT—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interest on: TAEBEZFE
— Finance leases —REHE (25) (33)
— Bank borrowing —RITEX (20,937) (24,656)
— Shareholder’s loan —REER - (92,410)
— Loan from a related company —BEARIER (448,423) (138,987)
Effective interest expense on AR ES 2 BERFLE
convertible bonds X - (35,324)
(469,385) (291,410)
Less: Amount capitalised in investment o AR EME AN R
properties under construction 376,675 200,041
Amount capitalised in properties HEMEZ BN e
for sale 71,748 66,680
(20,962) (24,689)
Note:  All capitalised finance costs are related to specific borrowings. Mzt FIEEANMEEBEREEFEERER o
- - - P
12. Gains on Derivatives 12 fTE T A2 W
2015 2014
—E-RfF —E=—FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Fair value change on conversion option ARG 2 IR ERRESTE T A
derivative of convertible bonds (note 32)  ~ AF(@EE5)(Fi:E32) - 20,549
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13. Profit Before Tax 13. BRB A=A
2015 2014
—E-RfF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Profit before tax has been arrived at BB RT = A E $0BR
after charging: AR & 18
Auditors’ remuneration BRI & 4,748 4,668
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  FE{<F0 & 2k IR 44 6,394 6,388
Depreciation of property, M - BE K&
plant and equipment RAEITE 104,871 122,509
Depreciation of ponies BIEHTE 9,253 9,049
Loss on disposal of property, BEY  BER
plant and equipment R EE 281 26
Ponies written off ES DT 8 883 815
Operating lease rentals in respects HEMHF 2 KE
of rented premises HERS 17,862 15,900
Staff costs (including directors’ BTHA(BIE
emoluments) ==Me)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances 4 - B4 K2R 270,521 254,782
Retirement benefit cost (note 38) RIRERIBA (BEE38) 23,601 21,890
Share-based payment expenses LARR D RETETRZ B A 52,175 24,470
346,297 301,142
Less: Amount capitalised in investment B EEREYEZ
properties under construction =¥ oo (44,263) (36,418)
Amount capitalised in properties HEME 2 BN
for sale x| (22,977) (24,278)
279,057 240,446
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

14. Income Tax Expense

14, FREBAER X

2015 2014
—E-EHF —ET-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
The income tax expense comprises: FIETIAR X 015
Current tax BN EA% 1R
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R ERTEH (44,754) (193,351)
— PRC Land Appreciation Tax — F B - IR (E R (27,294) (187,704)
(72,048) (381,055)
Overprovision in respect of prior periods &7+ AR FREE B
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEBFER - 12,394
(72,048) (368,661)
Deferred tax (note 34) EEFR A (KI7E34) (329,862) (177,078)
Income tax expense for the year FEEHERHFAY (401,910) (545,739)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
group companies operating in Hong Kong do not have any
assessable profits for both years.

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the rates
applicable to respective subsidiaries. Under the laws of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax and Implementation Regulation of
the Enterprise Income Tax Law, the tax rate applicable to the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The provision of the PRC Land Appreciation Tax is calculated
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. The PRC Land Appreciation Tax has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable deductions.

AT S 28 0 5 5 B A B 7 /R {8 3 S AT )
FERTOGA] - B EAHERIB NS B

FEMEMERZERRSHBRRNTXRGTE -
RIBH B D EFASHOEREEMMBEOEBIEIED -

“ZRN\F-A-RAREANTERANB AR
ZIRAER25% °

o B IR (E A 2 B T IR B R P BB 505 1) K {6k
DIFFE 2 $RE fAET o HE LB ER S RIEEEY
REREEE S A TR HIRIA B FTHE
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

14. Income Tax Expense — continued

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

14, FiSHEMAX — &

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

REE R P15 IR R 5 A)
Wk < BRBATE SRR T

reBEkEMER

2015 2014
—E-AfF —EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Profit before tax R Bt BT ok 1) 1,056,776 1,401,327
Tax charge at the domestic income tax BRI E25%

rate of 25% (2014: 25%) (ZZ—WF : 25%)

HE BT H (264,194) (350,332)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  #EE fth Al A HE R 58 2 BB A A

operating in other jurisdictions EE TRz 2 (18,303) (11,994)
Tax effect of income not taxable Farbim = BAER A

for tax purpose 2R 759 5,300
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A 5 ™M HRR X

for tax purpose 2R RE (10,897) (7,929)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WimtER 2 BIEER 2 g E (93,634) (95,258)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax AR R - R (E R (27,294) (187,704)
Tax effect of PRC Land Appreciation Tax A B + 38 {E 5 > i 7 oo 2 6,824 46,926
Overprovision in respect of prior periods B EAR R R R - 12,394
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) ATHAAR FERR 2 T B 18

recognised - 37,035
Others Efth 4,829 5,823
Tax charge for the year FEMRIEL M (401,910) (545,739)
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

15. Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Directors of the
Company for both years, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

16. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

15. B2

$ A& =R SRR N R (B R 2 2 BX
- BEREMRAREERIR N ERRE -

16. R &R

ARRIEBABEERERREFRFTIRE
THBERE

2015 2014
—E—RE —T—uF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Earnings BRI
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings 5 ””’_HQEZJS
per share (Profit for the year attributable  Z&F| 2 &BF|(Z&A
to owners of the Company) %EAJ‘&‘HEF;E%U) 654,866 855,588
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EfEEE @R 2 2 -
Fair value change on conversion option AR RS 2 HAREAREDT A
derivatives of convertible bonds TAZRATEES) - (20,549)
Exchange gain in relation to liability TE 18 2R R B AT MR AR
component of convertible bonds BHra‘EEs
recognised in profit or loss A B 2 E 5 ek - (5,423)
Earnings for the purpose of BRI ESREERT
diluted earnings per share 2 B7 654,866 829,616
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16. Earnings Per Share — continued 16. BB — &
2015 2014
—E-RF —TmF
Number Number
of shares of shares
ROEE ixines B
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary BAREIEEFRER
shares for the purpose of basic earnings Az Eimhk
per share TINS5 £ 3,567,565,421 3,566,963,841
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BfE#E L@ 2 -
— Share options —HE AR 41,804,478 24,539,326
— Convertible bonds — Al ES - 38,177,545
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EERESS
shares for the purpose of BN 2 E AR
diluted earnings per share DnAEF S 3,609,369,899 3,629,680,712
The computation of diluted earnings per share for both years ARTEESRMEFEESRKEMN 2 FHH
ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 does not assume B BEtEHE—_T—hAF=A=+—8Kk=
the exercise of certain of the Company’s share options as the T—ME=A=+—HIMEFEzSREE
exercise price was higher than the average market price per AT EBRAR RS TEAREEITE -

share for both years.
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. Y% - BERRE
Hotel and Furniture,
polo club Plant and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings ~ properties ~ machinery improvements  equipment vehicles Total
BER G- %8
[ = ERenE  HERRE AENERE Rt RE it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

(note)
(Fzr)

AT COST KA
At 1 April 2013 R=E—=FMmF—H 3,712 2,867,631 758 5,549 147,460 63,507 3,088,617
Exchange realignment R (5) (3,239 (1) - (174) (64) (3,483)
Additions b=l 9,311 - - - 11,71 1,609 22,691
Disposals e = - - - (501) - (501)
Cost adjustment AR - (317.920) - - - - (317,920)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-IF

=f=t-H 13,018 2,546,472 757 5,549 158,49 65,112 2,789,404
Exchange realignment AR 11 1,947 1 = 129 46 2,134
Additions b= 31,151 31,748 - - 18,751 - 81,650
Disposals e - - - - (908) = (908)
At 31 March 2015 RN-F-HE

=A=t-H 44,180 2,580,167 758 5,549 176,468 65,158 2,872,280
DEPRECIATION g
At 1 April 2013 WZE-=%MmA—H 374 102,428 758 5,549 52,290 26,281 187,680
Exchange realignment ~ E 5% = (131) (1) - (57) (29 (218)
Provided for the year EERE 185 76,703 - - 33,633 11,988 122,509
Eliminated on disposals HERE - - - - (475) - (475)
At 31 March 2014 i3

=A=t-H 559 179,000 757 5,549 85,391 38,240 309,496
Exchange realignment ExAE - 158 1 - 68 28 255
Provided for the year EERE 185 68,087 - - 24,555 12,044 104,871
Eliminated on disposals HERBE - - - - (627) - (627)
At 31 March 2015 R_Z-1F

=A=t-H 744 247,245 758 5,549 109,387 50,312 413,995
CARRYING AMOUNTS  REE
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1F

=A=1t-H 43,436 2,332,922 - - 67,081 14,846 2,458,285
At 31 March 2014 R-E-NE

=A=t-H 12,459 2,367,472 - - 73,105 26,872 2,479,908
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued

The buildings and the hotel properties are located on land held
under medium-term leases and are located in the PRC.

The polo club properties are located on land owned by X<
EEFEIMEXEREEZEE Administrative Committee
of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park. During the year ended 31
March 2009, REFRMEXEREEEZSE Administrative
Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park had granted the
Group with the right to use such land for 40 years provided
that the Group was committed to construct the polo club
with minimum investment of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$180,800,000). The Group had already reached the
committed minimum investment during the year ended 31
March 2010.

The carrying amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment
of the Group in respect of assets held under finance leases was
HK$78,000 (2014: HK$196,000).

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings Over the estimated useful life of 20 years,
or the unexpired term of the relevant
lease,whichever is shorter

Hotel and polo club
properties

Over the estimated useful life of 40 years,
or the unexpired term of the relevant
lease, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% - 20%

Leasehold improvements  Over the estimated useful life of 5 years

or the unexpired term of the relevant
lease, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

20% - 33Y.%

Motor vehicles 20%

Note: As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of hotel properties
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$1,536,593,000
(2014: HK$1,579,875,000) while the carrying amount of polo
club properties of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$796,329,000 (2014: HK$787,597,000).

17. 9% - BERRE-&

ZERFRBEMELNPEAFBHEERE
2tk e

EREWMEMRNKENRINELXRREELZE
AT TN E BE_ETNE=F=1+—
ALEFE  REFRMEXEREEZEER
AEBEHZE I FHARE - AHI405 - A1
RAEAGSEAFEZTRE  FEEEEAR
#160,000,0007T (485 72 180,800,000 7T ) ©
RBE-_ZT-—ZTF=A=+—HILFE K&
EEERAERERERE -

AREBFBZTUAREREREE2RM KER
REZREEEA780008 T (T —M4F :
196,000/ 7T °

Lt - BEREBEAEREE TS FRT
=S

BF —+F 2 (TR {E A F s
i ER A BEEHA (ARE
HEA%E)
BIERSERE W+FZ AR AI{EAF s
e i ERE BEEHA (ARE
HEA%E)
W25 KR 10%-20%
TEMEEE  AFZ(AEA{ERF R
#475 BEAR & 2R (LAESE B
HA%E)
B KER  20%-33Y.%
B
RE 20%

fizt: R-ZE—RAE=A=+—0 AEEEEWE
Z BRE{E#)51,536,593,000/8 7T (—Z — P04 :
1,579,875,000/870) ' MASEEREMEZ
BRI 1A B 4) 4 796,329,00058 7T ( — & — PO 4F :
787,597,000/ 7T )
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued 17. 9% - BERRE-—&

During the year, the Directors conducted a review of the
Group's hotel and polo club properties and determined that
those assets were not impaired after the consideration of
the expectations on the market development and business
growth of the hotel and polo club after the completion of the
residential and commercial properties in the same area being
developed by the Group. Accordingly, no impairment loss was
required to be recognised in respect of the Group’s hotel and
polo club properties for the year.

FAR - EE2ERAANEEZBEENRTREY
¥ WREREEERSRETHSERLREAR
SEBNFE—HRAZR 2 EERFAMEEK
BRUEHIBR ZFARNE - BEZFEELER
BERE - Bt - FRBARAEEEE RS
SYRHERRERRE

18. Ponies 18. BT
HK$'000
FET
AT COST R
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FmA—H 64,176
Exchange realignment b 5 A (78)
Written off i sH (1,010)
At 31 March 2014 RN-ZE—MFE=A=+—H 63,088
Exchange realignment B i, = 51
Additions =0 11,814
Written off M (1,348)
At 31 March 2015 RN_ZE—RF=A=+—H 73,605
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2013 R-ZZE—=FmMA—H 13,312
Exchange realignment [ H AR (16)
Provided for the year FERHE 9,049
Elimination on written off e A I £ (195)
At 31 March 2014 RN_ZE—MNFE=A=+—H 22,150
Exchange realignment FE 3, % 17
Provided for the year FERE 9,253
Elimination on written off T B 8 (465)
At 31 March 2015 W_ZE—RF=A=+—H 30,955
CARRYING AMOUNT BRE{E
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—HF=HA=+—H 42,650
At 31 March 2014 W_ZE—MFE=A=+—H 40,938

Ponies are depreciated on a straight-line basis at 14.3% per
annum.

BILABEAERTF143% ZITERITE o
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19. Investment Properties

19. REWHE

HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMHA—H 10,690,129
Exchange realignment FE =L (13,314)
Construction cost incurred and capitalised FREE 2 BEKAREBEARERAEZ
expenditure 3,438,005
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss B RER Z AN FEEE N 708,312
At 31 March 2014 R-ZT—WE=A=+—8 14,823,132
Exchange realignment [ 5, A2 12,639
Construction cost incurred and FirEE A 2 BREER AR R B ANME I 2
capitalised expenditure 4,514,766
Transferred from other assets (note 20) s e H A& B (M15E20) 357,947
Increase in fair value recognised in RIBRERZ A FEE N
profit or loss 679,155
Fair value gain upon transfer of other assets to EMEEERSIREYE 2 A FERE
investment properties (note 20) (F5E20) 640,294
At 31 March 2015 R=B-—-HF=A=+—H 21,027,933

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuation carried out on these dates by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group,
who has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

AEBREYWER-_ZT—AF=_A=+—8BRK
—T-NFE=A=+—H2Z2FE " HREHR
HEAEERERE B YA EREEGEMSE
—ARFHENEEREEBERBRARNREZSE
BHARTIE L 2 BT E - &EERMR AR E
FEECUYEGESEEESEER LSS -

RETARBEIREMENDFER - ZF
FNESBERKERGR/ERE RS -
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19. Investment Properties — continued

The valuation of the Group's investment properties under
construction is determined with reference to the fair value of
the bare land plus construction costs incurred. The fair value of
the bare land has been arrived at by adopting the comparison
approach and making reference to the market transactions as
available in the markets, with adjustments made to account
for various factors including geographical location of the
properties, availability of transportation system and public
facilities and the estimated development period of the Group’s
investment properties under construction. The valuer has
also determined on the basis that the Group's investment
properties under construction will be developed and completed
in accordance with the latest development proposals and taken
into account the construction costs that will be expended to
complete the development as well as developer’s profit margin
to reflect the quality of the completed development.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals purpose are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

All of the Group’s investment properties are under construction
and located on leasehold lands in the PRC under medium-term
leases.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined including
the inputs used, as well as the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurements. There were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 or transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year.

19. REYXE—-E

AEBEERREMEZMGE  H2EAREL
ZAFEMASI B EERAEE - AR
ZRFERBLEERZEMS EAIS 25
X5 WHZHERZRERMEZMEGE - T
AN BEARRARRERAEEERZRE
MERZBAERBELHBEMSH - HEME
SEBUAKREERREME RS REMAE
ST EIAETT R 3 ROR T (AR - Wat RER
HERTHEENRERARAARKRE T
ERPBEEZRRANEERMETE -

FERGET AL ELE

AEERBEEHERAERERE ZHAEY
KD HURFEEREAGE - X BRIIE
REME -

AEEZHREEMEDERT REURPE -
AR HEERE 2 HE T -

TR BEREZFREMEN R HENAEE
(BEMABABE) ARDFEFESBHA
FEER(E-—RE=FINER - BADEAT
ERNAHEAENGABBIESEEE REA
HEBEHATEFEBEXN - RAFE  E—&
HE R EYEBHEIEALBHE=R -
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19. Investment Properties — continued 19. REWME—E&E

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated Relationship of
statement of Significant unobservable inputs
financial position Fair value hierarchy Key inputs unobservable inputs  to fair value Sensitivity
RaBRR BRI EENTABREN FABENAABE
FEERENRENE AFEER TEDARE BARE BATEMER YEE
At 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014
RZZE-R¥=A=+—H
kZZ-mE=A=1+-H
Investment properties Level 3 The key inputs are Unit rate of bare land  The higher the unit Assignificant increase
under construction that (1) Unit rate of bare  value, taking into rate of bare land in the unit rate of
are measured at fair value E= land value account of location value, the higher the  bare land value would
located in Tianjin (2)  Construction and individual factors ~ fair value. result in a significant
cost incurred such as geographical increase in fair value
AR ERERREER location of the ZHEEZEEWS - and vice versa.
TaEsrE FEHAHE properties, availability ~ AFEHA o
(1) ZMEEZEE  of transportation TEECEBRRL
() EZEERA  system and public ABEHRTENEL
facilities, with the o RZIR
comparables at
gross floor area of
RMB7,583 (2014:
RMB6,692) per square
metre.
ZHEECEE(ER
R 2 i E R (E
RIEZ IR 2 IBh
£ FEBNRBERS
RALRM) BETH
RBEE@ER)ARYE
7,583 7L (Z B
ARH#6,6927) ©
Construction cost The higher the No sensitivity analysis

incurred, taking into
account of progress
of the properties, at
gross floor area of
RMB7,421 (2014:
RMB5,020) per square
metre.

HBIZRENA(ERE
HMEBRER)A
FERA(BERRR)
ARETA1(ZF
—mE : ARE5,020
o) °

construction cost
incurred, the higher
the fair value.

LB RERAES -
RFEHA -

for construction cost
incurred since they
are derived from the
existing construction
cost incurred as at the
date of valuation.

MRTEE R AT
TERREER SRS
EMRERE - RitE
B RULEEEEAT -
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20. Other Assets 20. HbEE

The other assets amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to
HK$325,277,000) represented land use rights acquired from
KEBRLKRER AR A A Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group
Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding"”) through the
acquisition of assets and liabilities of Goldin Properties (Tianjin)
Company Limited during the year ended 31 March 2009,
which would be disposed of within twelve months subsequent
to year ended 31 March 2009 (the “Disposal”). The land
use rights were located on leasehold lands in the PRC under
medium-term leases and carried at the lower of cost and fair
value less cost to sell. A deposit of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$306,720,000) was received from Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding
during the year ended 31 March 2009.

At 31 March 2011, the Directors reassessed the probability
of the completion of the Disposal. It was considered that the
Disposal would probably be terminated due to the change
of development plan of the purchaser. Accordingly, the land
use rights amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to
HK$340,739,000) was classified as other assets under non-
current assets. The deposit of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$321,300,000) was classified as deposit received in advance
included in trade and other payables as at 31 March 2011.

As at 31 March 2014, the Disposal was not yet terminated
nor completed. Accordingly, the land use rights subject to
the Disposal remained accounted for as other assets and the
deposit received in advance was included in trade and other
payables as at 31 March 2014 amounted to RMB286,335,000
(equivalent to HK$357,632,000) and RMB270,000,000
(equivalent to HK$337,230,000), respectively.

H i B E A R # 286,335,000 7t (48 & R
325,277,000/ 70 ) BB BREBE_T T NF
A=+ HEFERRRZERZEREE
BRAR([REERER ] WESRBE(K
E)BRARZEEREBEMERS 2 i ER
T Mz T AEeEREE—EENF=A
=t BLEEERT-_EAREE([HES
B]) o LinfFARUFBHEERFE @ WARF
BIAEE 4 3 | B ik AR B A AR H SRR 2
REETE REBEE-_ZZHhE=A=1+—H
LEFER - BRAXESRIERKEUZE AR
270,000,0007T (#8557306,720,000/5 7T ) °

RZE——F=A=+—H EZE5HIHT
REESEEZ Ak RAEHEZEAERE
HEBEERETE MR - it - BHARKE
286,335,000 7t (5 55 7 340,739,000 7% 7T ) &2
THFEREEEEAFRBEEE N2 HME
E-R-_T——F=A=1+—H REARK
270,000,000t (#85574321,300,000/8 7T ) B 5
HRBENIES - 5T ARG AR FIE o

R-ZF—WF=A=+—08  HEFHENAK
WEZENK - Bt REZE—WFE=A=+—
B REHEEEN 2 LiEREDIREME
EARR @ MERIZS ARG ARBMERR R EA
ERRIE - &85 5l A AR %286,335,000
7t (18 % 7 357,632,000 T ) B A R &
270,000,000t (#855#337,230,000/8 7T ) °
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

20. Other Assets — continued

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group entered
into a termination agreement with Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding in
respect of the termination of the Disposal. The leasehold lands
were planned by the Group for development of properties held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, and accordingly,
the land use rights amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent
to HK$357,947,000) have been transferred to investment
properties from other assets, resulting in the fair value gain
upon transfer to investment properties of HK$640,294,000
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. As at 31 March 2015,
the deposit received in advance included in trade and other
payables of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$337,527,000)
will be refunded to Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding on or before 31

20. EfthEE &

October 2015. Details of trade and other payables are set out

in note 28(d).

21. Prepaid Lease Payments

21. AN EERE

HE—T-—RAF=A=1+—HIFE K&H
R REBRRRIE D EFH TR IER
& o ANEEBEGZHEE T AEREYE
RS R SEAREE - Bt - £EAA
K #286,335,0007T (1B 7 357,947,000% 7T
ZIFAREHEMEESEIREYE -
BN R A 1B R H Ath 2 T RS 3R 3k R AR e
BREYE 7 A FEWR 640,294,000 7T ° 1Y
—E-RF=ZA=+—8 B ABMERERE
A A5 FRIE A R #5270,000,000 7T (FHE 7
337,527,000 ) 2 FEWIZ S R =T —RHF
+A=+—HE®ZARE FREGHRLER - &
SRR SR S EL M FE A 5008 2 s B S A i aE28(d)

2015 2014
—E-fHEF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BERE B AEL DT ¢
Current portion mENER D 6,394 6,388
Non-current portion JEEYER 238,973 245,151
245,367 251,539
2015 2014
—E-fHEF —ZT—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
The Group'’s prepaid lease payments REE Z BNBEFEELR
represent land use rights in the PRC and ~ HE = -1 FHiE - 845 :
comprise:
Long lease REFAE - 82,592
Medium-term lease T EAFRE 245,367 168,947
245,367 251,539
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21. Prepaid Lease Payments — continued 1. BN HERE &
As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the carrying RZE—RAF=A=+—"HEZZ—HNF=
amount of land use rights used for hotel operation A=+—H #AESEBERAZz - HER
amounted to approximately RMB131,491,000 (equivalent to EERBBEAN RS ARK131,491,000 7T (4B 5
HK$164,377,000) (2014: RMB 135,266,000 (equivalent to 7K164,377,0008 L) (ZE—MF : AR
HK$168,947,000)). 135,266,0007T (#5572 168,947,000/ 7T) ) ©
22. Intangible Assets 2. BEE
Club
debentures
BFfES
HK$'000
FAT
At COST R
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and RZZE—=FMA—H —ZT—M4F
31 March 2015 =A=t—Bk=_ZE—FRF=A=+—H 610
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #84 FORE
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and RZZE—=FMA—H - —Z—MF
31 March 2015 =A=t—BRk=_ZE—FRF=A=+—H 520
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 R-B-NME=A=+—-HR
—E-RF=H=+—H 920
The amount represents the club debentures which are having ZEeRACHES  BEERAFEAFH R
an indefinite useful life because they are expected to generate EREMES BRI ERAEECENE -2
economic benefit indefinitely. The club debentures are tested FriERRE2EmMEETRERR -

for impairment annually by reference to the market value.
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23. Deposits Paid for Acquisition of Property, Plant and 23. BEY % -  BERBERETIZE

Equipment and Ponies ti&e
As at 31 March 2015, deposits paid by the Group amounting RZZE—RF=A=+—H FrEEEfZE
to approximately HK$17,441,000 (2014: HK$11,289,000) #917,441,0008 70( = ZF—PU4F : 11,289,000/
were mainly in relation to the acquisition of property, plant and TMEBEBBEERSERSEBKBEEYE  BE
equipment and ponies for hotel and polo club operation. BERFICER -
24. Inventories 24. 78§
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Food, wine and beverage and RY)  JBFE R EEA K
general stores —REFE 58,010 65,333
Polo products FSIRE m 9,908 10,249
67,918 75,582
25. Properties for Sale 25. SHEM
2015 2014
—E-EF —ET-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Completed properties for sale BERTHEYE 2,626,458 372,534
Properties under development for sale BERERPEEYE 6,890,425 7,666,377
9,516,883 8,038,911
The Group's properties for sale are situated in the PRC. All ZK%Z%EW%HKEP c FTRREMRT)
properties for sale are carried at lower of cost and net realisable AR B A B FENREE AR -
value.
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26. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and 26. FEURBR =X Iz H b FEURFRIE ~ FE X

Deposits EHREZESE
2015 2014
—E—FE —F—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
Trade receivables JEURBR R 69,048 135,944
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE - =
69,048 135,944
Other receivables and prepayments HoAb MR IE R TE S F08 171,209 333,605
Deposits e 15,014 11,785

Total trade and other receivables, JE U BE =% N ELAth pE W SRoE -

prepayments and deposits TERTRIE R iR & M5 255,271 481,334

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, other receivables
and prepayments mainly include (i) the amount of
RMB42,929,000 (equivalent to HK$53,666,000) (2014:
RMB42,929,000 (equivalent to HK$53,619,000)) which
represented receivable from Tianjin Hi-Tech Property
Development Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Property”)
in respect of the corresponding tax liability paid and payable
in respect of waiver of shareholders’ loans in which Tianjin
Hi-Tech Property has agreed to bear upon the acquisition of
assets and liabilities of K)ZZELHF X AFR A F] Tianjin Huading
Real Estate Company Limited (“Huading”), a subsidiary
acquired during the year ended 31 March 2009. The amount
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand; and (ii)
prepayments for construction materials of HK$44,205,000
(2014: HK$193,505,000).

As at 31 March 2015, included in trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits of the Group are trade receivables
(net of allowance for doubtful debts) of HK$69,048,000
(2014: HK$135,944,000), of which HK$68,217,000 (2014:
HK$132,702,000) are to be settled based on the terms of
sales and purchase agreements of completed properties for
sale. The amounts of trade receivables have been fully settled
subsequently after the year ended date.

R-E—RAF=A=+—HE-_Z—UF=AH
=+—A8  HEKRZFEBERBENFEZEEE
() MR EREHERBFR AR ([ XEFER
BihE D ERKBREESBEEGRAR ([
B —MRAEE_ZTAF=A=T—HLF
FEREHNBAR) 2 EERBERRERAER
ZRRERME M RERM 2 AERIEE & E
WK 2GR HhE 2 5B AR #42,929,0007T
(FB 253,666,000/ L) (ZE—HF : AR
#542,929,000 7T (#8 % #253,619,0007 75) ) ©
ZRBAERR R ERREREE k()2
S YRIFB A FIEA4,205,00058 7T ( — T — P4 ¢
193,505,000/8 7T ) °

R_ZE—RF=A=+—0  AEENREIER
R EAEUEIE « BARIERZS BERRK
BR 7k (FOBR RER 45 ) 69,048,000/ 7 (= ZF —Y
F : 135,944,000 7T ) + EH68,217,0007%8 7T
(ZZ—PU4 : 132,702,000 ) ISR IEE R T
HEMEZ EEMZENIERMAR o BUERR
ERANFERGEZBEN o
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26. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and

Deposits — continued

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
customers for certain services rendered by the Group. The
Group'’s trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
from hotel and polo club operation based on the invoice date
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, was within the age of 60
days.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored
to minimise any credit risk associated with these trade debtors.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. In addition, the amounts of trade
receivables have been fully settled subsequently after the year
ended date. Accordingly, the Directors of the Company believe
that there is no provision required except for the allowance for
doubtful debts previously made and written off during the year
ended 31 March 2014 as set out below.

26. R AR I AL tb EUWFRTE ~ AR

BREE-&

AEEREREHRZETREG TEPFH=1
BZEEH - REEHR - AKRERQHRRE
BB BEERSREEBNEEETRERR
B8 (R tER B RS ) 2RI+
HA

AEERFREEERER  NHEERZTH
FEEER - WX B BRZ T - UREEZ
FREFIRBENEMNEERR

B TE MR TR B 2 R By - NSRBI
ERBENRAXLERAEERERRZEEEE
EREML - Lo BURERARERAFREES
BER - Atk - RAREERRGE - BRTIERE
B EREE—T—ME=A=+—HIt
FREME RRBEEIN - BAIERE -

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIREEEE
2015 2014
—E-EF —ZT—HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 April REA—H - 1,225
Written off during the year F R - (1,225)
At 31 March R=A=+—8H - =
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26. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and
Deposits — continued

The Group’s trade and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out

26. R AR I b BN TE ~ TR
Bk -&

NSRBI ER 2 e ER MM 2 E¥ BER
27N SR B R MR R K B B WK BROR ~ TR R
MBEIT

below:
usbD HKD
ETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
At 31 March 2015 R-ZB-—HRF=A=+—H 8 14,278
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—WF=A=+—H 8 14,278

27. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash, bank
balances and time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in currencies other than RMB, the functional
currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

21. RERBEEEY

AEEREFRASEFEVRERS  RITET
RRBIHAR=EARZERFR - REEA
HREEERIEEE ARBITIANIN 2 GG
BzRERBSEENHIINT

AUD usbD HKD
BT E BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET

Cash and cash equivalents B4 NIR&EEY
At 31 March 2015 R-E—HRF=A=+—H 44 1,621 1,676
At 31 March 2014 RZZ—WE=A=+—H 54 96,673 5,305

The Group’s bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2014: 0.01% to 1.49%) per
annum.

AEBRTEGFETSEFNEN F0.01%E
0.35%(=ZF V04 : 0.01%%E1.49% )51 5 °

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 142 SiRELRER AT £/ 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n B BT §5 4R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

28. Trade and Other Payables

An aged analysis of trade payables, presented based on the

B R H AR

RBERR - BNEFREBEEZAH2HR K

invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is set out as EOMESIANT
follows:
2015 2014
—B-HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAxT
0 - 90 days 0£90H 438,605 437,862
91 — 180 days 912180H - -
Over 180 days 180H A E - -
Total trade payables FERTBR R AR 438,605 437,862
Construction cost payables (note a) FET SRR A SR IA (Fi 5Ea) 4,254,621 2,101,495
Retention payables (note b) FEAHRE T2 R0E (MsEb) 1,489,849 1,079,627
Trade and construction cost payables  FE{{ BRI R 2 E R A KIE 6,183,075 3,618,984
Dividend payable JETRE B 1,102 1,102
Other payables (note c) E e RIE (Makc) 426,255 381,523
Deposits received in advance (note d) FEM IR S (M5Ed) 387,591 839,328
Polo club membership fees received FEhEHeesEs R
in advance 68,736 71,193
Others (note e) E A (Ffizke) 1,210 59,742
Other payables and accruals HitENRENRTEIREA 884,894 1,352,888
7,067,969 4,971,872
Notes: B eE -

(a)

Construction cost payables represented the payables on construction
costs incurred for the development of investment properties and hotel
and polo club properties.

Retention payables are expected to be paid after twelve months from
the end of the reporting period upon the expiry of the retention
periods in accordance with the respective contracts.

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, the amount of the
Group mainly represented consideration payable of RMB89,912,000
(equivalent to HK$112,399,000) (2014: RMB89,912,000 (equivalent
to HK$112,300,000)) in relation to the acquisition of a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin Investment Company Limited
(“Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin”) during the year ended 31 March 2009;
Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin has been merged with Goldin Properties (Tianjin)
Company Limited during the year ended 31 March 2011. The amount
was unsecured and repayable on demand.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

(a)

FEN R KA FIBIER B MEARBERSHEY
RERMEL Z RNEEKA -

FENMRER T2 FRTRH K i 5 HA R B AT+ =@ A
BRRBERBESA KT MR AT

R-E—RF=ZA=Z=+—ARKR=-_ZE—NFE=A
=+—B AEEERSEIZEAREE_ZTH
FZA=t+—ALFEARKEBE2EHBRRIX
EERRBREGRAR([RESRER]) 2/E
AR E A R #89,912,000 7T (48 % 7 112,399,000
BIL) (ZF—F - AR%89,912,0007T (FHER
112,300,000/ 7T)) s KESFRRENBEE=F
——&=A=t—BUFERNERRHBE(KE)R
RARIE B R EAEIKERAREREE -
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28. Trade and Other Payables — continued

Notes: — continued

(d)

(e)

Deposits received in advance represented (i) the deposit of
RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$337,527,000) (2014:
RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$337,230,000)) received from
Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding during the year ended 31 March 2009 and
to be refunded pursuant to the termination agreement entered into
with Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding during the year. For details, please refer
to note 20; and (ii) deposits received from potential purchasers of
properties for sale. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group received the
amount of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to HK$100,048,000) from &
EHRIMMEXEREIEZE 8€ which represented the prepayment
of construction cost of education facilities being developed by the
Group on behalf of KEFEMEEEREEEZEE and the project
management fee paid to the Group amounting to RMB77,600,000
(equivalent to HK$97,047,000) and RMB2,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,001,000), respectively. The construction has been completed
during the year ended 31 March 2015. As at 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014, the outstanding balance represented such prepayment
of construction cost of education facilities which is used to offset
the relevant construction costs incurred for the development of the
education facilities by the Group. In addition, the project management
fee received has already been fully amortised on straight-line basis over
the construction period to profit or loss as project management fee
income during the year.

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

28. B AR R HAb B FUE — ]

BfsE - —#&

d) BUREESAENVEBEE—_ZTAF=-A=+—HLLEE
R 28 Rz R IR A 12 & A R #6270,000,000 7T

(%14 337,527,000870) (=T — M F -

AR

270,000,000t (#8557 337,230,000/ 7T ) ) * I #
BERENERZERIERET L 2RI HZE T TR
[ - FEBELMNE20 0 RVEDERE 2BEE

KU TS - RERBTEEMR RS

() BE_Z—=F=RA=+—HILFER "

REE

WEHREREZFRMEXBEREEZEGARK
80,000,0007T (#8574 100,048,000/ 78 ) Z A * 5
AIEAEMNAEBRRRENENEXEEERE
BERB2HE R 2 EEKNARK77,600,000
70 (F8 % 7297,047,0005% 7T ) K M AN &£ B % 18 B
B2 E A R 2,400,0007T (#8552 3,001,000%8
) IREREBE_E—AFE=A=+—HIFE
RNEK - R—ZE—hF=A=+—BR_ZT—NF
=A=+—RH  ®BEAZHABRHERMEZENER
AN - A LAIR SH A SR B R B S e TS A 2 AR

BREEKA © B

WEZIRE B ERENEE

RZEREREEHERETHRAFAZLIRBE

EERRA -

NS EER ARz BB RERLY

AEBENRR M EMENRBNT

usbD HKD

EY A TT

HK$'000 HK$'000

T THETT

At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—FHE=A=+—8 1,723 14,424

At 31 March 2014 RZE—MFE=RA=+—H 1,712 2,067
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to AEEREBYBRREIEBER @ WEREZIBE

ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.
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29. Amounts Due From (To) Related Companies

Amount due from a related company

n B BT §5 4R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

29. R (FE(Y) BAEE X RIFRIR
FE U —EIBAE 1 BT

Maximum

Balance Balance amount

at at outstanding

Name of related company 31.3.2015 1.4.2014  during the year
R=ZB—HF R=Z—OF

=HB=t+—H mA—H FRARS

BEQB AR ZEEER ZEEER REBESH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T

Smart Edge Limited BEARAT 1,716 - 1,716

Smart Edge Limited is a subsidiary of Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited ("GFHL"), and Mr. Pan is a non-executive director, the
chairman and the controlling shareholder of GFHL.

The amount due from a related company which is of trade
nature, is unsecured, interest-free and aged within 30 days
based on the invoice date, which approximates the respective
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period.
The balance was fully settled subsequently after the year ended
31 March 2015.

Amounts due to related companies

The amounts due to related companies, in which Mr. Pan, the
Director and Chairman of the Company has beneficial interests,
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, except
for HK$53,817,000 (2014: HK$35,940,000) which represents
interest payable on the loan granted to the Group from Goldin
Special Situations Limited (“Goldin Special Situations”) are
repayable on contractual dates.

The Group’'s amounts due to related companies are
denominated in USD for both years, other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.

BERARAAASREB(EE)ER2A(S
REF ) ZHBERR  BELARRERZ
FNTES - TEREBBR -

ER—HEERARRBBES LY - BIER R
2R HRHEHRRERAH KK A308
A BEE W ESHER B HRL - SHRENREE
“E-RF=A=tHILFEREZEER -

FE(SBAE A BRI TR
FERERR (AR RAIESREREE L RS
B2 DRHARBER  REREEN

g ) RAAEEETFERZ BT E53,817,000
Bt (=Z — P4 ¢ 35,940,000/ 70 ) BIZBIR A
ABHAEE -

AEEMEFE 2 BANBERRFRELIAET
(EMERSEEER 2B N B )EHE -
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30. Bank Borrowing

30. SRITER

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mEF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHERT FET
Carrying amount repayable*: [EERIREE™
Within one year —FR 56,255 56,205
More than one year, but not exceeding B —FEDRME
two years 56,255 56,205
More than two years, but not more than BBMEEIRAF
five years 126,572 168,615
More than five years BBAE - 14,051
239,082 295,076
Less: Amount due within one year shown B mEN B EE TR
under current liabilities —FREIHZ 58 (56,255) (56,205)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities  FEREN& B8 NF/RKIE 182,827 238,871

*  The amount due is based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreement.

* ZEHBURAR KGR PTETRE K A R AL o

2015 2014

—E-EHF —T—HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T4

Unsecured bank loan EINIRERTTE K 239,082 295,076

At 31 March 2015, the Group has an unsecured bank
loan in the amount of RMB191,250,000 (equivalent to
HK$239,082,000) (2014: RMB236,250,000 (equivalent to
HK$295,076,000)). Such bank loan carries interest at market
rate of 6.79% (2014: 7.53%) per annum and is repayable in
instalments over a period of 7 years to 2019. The proceed was
used to finance the daily operation of hotel and polo club.

During the year, the Group repaid RMB45,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$56,255,000) (2014: RMB33,750,000 (equivalent to
HK$42,154,000)) based on the scheduled repayment dates.

The bank borrowing of the Group is denominated in RMB,
which is the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

RZZE—RAF=ZA=+—8 ~5EZEIK
IR 1T E R A AR 191,250,000 7T (18 &
7 239,082,0008 ) (ZF —HF : ARM
236,250,000t (#8572 295,076,000/ 7T ) ) °
ZIRITEFIR IS FHE6.79% (=T — M 4F :
753%)5t8 0 WBREE_ZT—NFIEtFH
MADHAEE - FT5RUEARBENEE R EBK
TZHEEIE -

FR - AEEERBOTERAEEARE
45,000,000 7t ( 48 5 7 56,255,000 % 7T ) ( =
T — 044 : AR ¥ 33,750,000 ¢ (# ZF R
42,154,000/ 7T)) °

REBZRITEFAARKETHE - TREIHERBESE
EER T
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31. Obligations Under Finance Leases 3. MEHEEK
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
BEXNHERH BEXNHEEBERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RE —T—UE —E-5F —E—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET THET TET
Amounts payable under finance  REREHEER
leases: -
Within one year —FR 105 105 87 80
In the second to fifth year inclusive E=-ZF R F
(BEEREMF) 174 279 163 250
279 384 250 330
Less: Future finance charges B RREEE (29) (54) - -
Present value of lease obligations FRE&E%K 2 HE 250 330 250 330
Less: Amount due for settlement 3 : — R FIH
within one year BERE (87) (80)
Amount due for settlement after ~ —41&ZI|5f
one year BEREE 163 250
The lease terms are five years. Interest rates are fixed at the HERRTF - MEREHBHRAEE - IEHE
contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and ENFHAEEERELE  WETIEAAEX
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental NSRS 2 HE °
payments.
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32. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives)

On 21 January 2011, convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal value of approximately HK$4,911,339,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds due 2014") were issued by the Company
to shareholders. The convertible bonds were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The convertible bonds were unsecured,
carried interest at 8% per annum and matured on 21 January
2014. Interest was repayable semi-annually after the date
of issue of convertible bonds. The effective interest rate was
19.41% per annum. No conversion of Convertible Bonds
due 2014 was made during the year ended 31 March 2014.
A principal amount of HK$226,736,000 in outstanding
Convertible Bonds due 2014 was redeemed by the Company at
100% on the maturity date at approximately HK$226,736,000
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

The proceeds received from the issue of the convertible bonds
had been split into liability component and conversion option
derivative. The liability component and the conversion option
derivatives of the Convertible Bonds due 2014 were measured
at fair value on initial recognition.

The movements of the liability component and conversion
option derivatives of the Convertible Bonds due 2014 are set
out as below:

32. ﬂ&&ﬁ%(@%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%’ﬁi

TH)

R=ZFE——F—A=+—H ARAIRKREREE
1T#ERN S EA %) 54,911,339,00058 7T Z Al #A I (&
HZB—NERHARBRES]) - ATRKRE
FLABTCEHE - T RRESAEER - UFE
8%t - WN—ZE—ME—F—+—HZIH -
RETRAIARESE BiEsr - BSFFEER
B BEFEMNERA1941% HE_ZT—HFE=
A=1t—HIL&E  —ZT—NERHraiRE
AEWARER® BE-_FE—NE=A=+—H
IEEE - R4 %8226,736,000/8 T2 — B — P04
EEAR M ARTTE AR E SR AR RN EE A
12100% LA%9226,736,00058 TiEE] °

BRTAUBBRESMENZAF/REE D KA
EHH R ARAETETAR - —T—MF3H
AgER 2B ERY MABRBETAETAR
BRHERRRATENE

—T-NFIHABRRERZ BEHS kLG
HIRETETAZEFFHIMT

Conversion

Liability option
component derivative Total

IR
=Lit:ipa) PTETR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT T
At 1 April 2013 R=E—=#mA—H 206,131 20,022 226,153
Interest expenses FEXZH 35,324 = 35,324
Interest paid BERFIE (14,719) — (14,719)

Exchange gain recognised B R 2 [ H Uas

in profit or loss (5,423) - (5,423)
Exchange realignment bE 5o A2 5,423 527 5,950
Changes in fair value NFEEE - (20,549) (20,549)
Redemption upon maturity R E| kG (226,736) - (226,736)

At 31 March 2014 and 31
March 2015

R-B-mE=A=+-AR
—E-HF=fA=+-H - - -
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32. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds due 2014 are set
out as follows:

Conversion

At the option of the holders, the convertible bonds would be
converted into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company on
any business day from the period commencing on the 30th day
from and excluding the date of issue of the convertible bonds
and ending on the 10th day prior to and excluding the maturity
date (both dates inclusive), at an initial conversion price of
HK$6 per share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price should be adjusted downwards on the
date failing 6 months from the date of issue of the convertible
bonds and every 6 months (the “Reset Date”) thereafter to
the arithmetic average price of the Company’s share for each
of the 30 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the
Reset Date, provided that the adjusted conversion price shall
never be below HK$4.8, subject to the customary adjustments
such as for sub-divisions, consolidation and reductions in the
share capital of the Company.

On 20 July 2011, the conversion price had been reset to
HK$4.8 per share.

Redemption

No convertible bonds may be redeemed by the Company and
the holders prior to the maturity date. Any convertible bonds
which remained outstanding by 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time)
on the maturity date (i.e., 21 January 2014) were redeemed by
the Company at 100% of its outstanding principal amount at
HK$226,736,000 during the year ended 31 March 2014.

RA/KREF(BRZBHETE

TH)-#&

2 -EF A BRRES 2 E EGRRETI W
B

R

BEBAZEE  RBRESARETARE
BB (T REZB)EFI0BEHA (T
BEZA)ZAETBIH(BEEERB)HEZ
ERIEERRBBRRRZHRERR - 915
HEREkeET(AIFHRE) -

SBETR S TTRIRES R A R6E A S
AR S6(EA(EEMA ) THEARAR
i B0 A A E0ARS A8 A ZRAH
WFIME - NSRS BETBIENA. BT -
WA EHA - & 6F REVRA R ARAS R R
B -

R-ZZE——F+tHA-+H RBEEEAFKR

48ETT

LE
ARRRRIEEATER DB 318 E TR
$ ME-T-MNF=-A=+-BLEFE £

ARBHE (B —E—ME—/F —+—H)FF
PUEF =15 (BBRM) M ARTTE 2 AT R EFH
ERARAIREREREARNEFE226,736,000/4 7T
Z100% 8@ o

=)
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32.

33.

Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option
Derivatives) — continued

Convertible Bonds due 2014 held by a related party

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the principal
amount of the outstanding Convertible Bonds due 2014
held by Matsunichi Goldbase Global (Management) Limited
(“Matsunichi Goldbase Global”) at the amount of
HK$90,000,000 were redeemed by the Company on the
maturity date (i.e., 21 January 2014).

GFHL is the ultimate holding company of Matsunichi Goldbase
Global, and Mr. Pan is also a non-executive director, the
chairman and the controlling shareholder of GFHL. Accordingly,
Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in the convertible bonds
held by Matsunichi Goldbase Global.

Loan From A Related Company

The Group obtained an unsecured loan facility from a related
company, Goldin Special Situations, in which Mr. Pan has
a beneficial interest, at the principal amount of not more
than US$2 billion (equivalent to HK$15,509,000,000 (2014:
HK$15,513,000,000)) which is unsecured, carries interests at
a rate of 8% per annum and was repayable on or before 26
August 2014. During the year, the expiry date was extended to
31 December 2016, which was classified as non-current.

Goldin Special Situations is a private investment company which
is mainly engaged in the investment in physical assets and
financial instruments, including real estate property, equities,
equity-linked products as well as fixed income bonds. It also
involves in investment relating to mergers and acquisitions of
listed or private companies.

The loan from a related company of the Group was
denominated in USD other than RMB, the functional currency
of the relevant group entity.

32.

33.

TERRESF(EELAMETE
TH)-&

—VEAEATREEZ-Z—HNF3Z
HTJ R E S
HE-T-—WE=A=1+—HIFE - A8
SEBRR(BEE)ARAT([MRESEBR )
7N 4 58 /490,000,000/8 7T 2 AR TEZ ==
—UFEHTRRES - ERARFREIEE
(I=—ZF—mE—A=-+—H)EO -

BREBANASERRZERIERAR - M
BAEENSBREBMZIFPITES - TRFIT
BRARR o Bt - BEERE SEARAEER
BRFFA 2 AT AR A 5 i s o

BEARERMK

AEEB —MBEQ A SREREE OELER
EFHEEEER) SEASEITZN20EE
T (#8572 15,509,000,0005 7T ( = & — P £
15,513,000,000/87T) ) 2 EHE IR E K - Z ER
AEAR - IRERRQ% T B MAN - T4
NAZFRBRZAEE - TR - ZEZKNE
MEBERE-E—"F+-A=+—HI5E
IEMENAER ©

SIREREE R —HLARERR KX 2X
BRRABREENERTA(BEFME - Ik
£ S BEmREEREES) - ZAFITR
2EBBHE LT RRRMARBNIRE -

REEZBERRERIAZTMIEARYE (107
SEEB I EE)E -
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4. EEHIEEE

The movements in major deferred tax liability recognised during
the year are as follows:

FADHERZI2RERARBEBNT

Revaluation of

investment

properties

REWYEER

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FMA—H 1,144,872
Exchange realignment M 5 B (1,465)
Charge to profit or loss (note 14) KB HER (FHFE14) 177,078
At 31 March 2014 MR- F=A=+—H 1,320,485
Exchange realignment HE 5 R 1,163
Charge to profit or loss (note 14) FiEEs R IRk (T EE14) 329,862
At 31 March 2015 R-B—HF=H=+—H 1,651,510

At 31 March 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$1,738,515,000 (2014: HK$1,299,401,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the tax
losses are losses of HK$858,899,000 (2014: HK$609,725,000)
that will expire within five years from the end of the reporting
period. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. There
were no other significant temporary differences arising during
the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Included in unexpired tax losses are tax losses of
HK$863,536,000 (2014: HK$632,543,000) that are not yet
assessed by the relevant tax authorities.

R_E—RAF=A=+—08 AEERFHZ
TR IE &8 1,738,515,0008 T ( — & — P04 :
1,299,401,0007% 7T ) Al 4R S R A= Al o AR
RACHF FORTATTEA - 8 BB R
REMEERIBEE - HIBBELESE RS
HASR B 5T 1 4 N JE i 2 /5 8858,899,0007% It (
—ZT—PU4 : 609,725,000/8 7T ) ° EMEEA
MR o FN RIS AR E A H A
BREREE o

RERHEBERE N REH BHSEETE
2 i TE E5 18 863,536,000 7T ( = F — U4 -
632,543,000/7T ) °
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35. Share Capital 35. [ 2
Number of
shares Share capital
RHEE S
Notes HK$'000
T AL
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2013 R-E—=FmA—H
~ Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each - BRREE0.055 7T
TR 10,000,000,000 500,000
At 31 March 2014 and RZZ-EF=A=1—H (@)
1 March 2015 RZZF-RF=A=1-R N/A TER N/A FEF
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1% —T-nF —E2-1% —2-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAL
Issued and fully paid: BRTRER -
At 1 April REA—H 3,567,380,426  3,566,082,188 10,923,728 178,304
Issue of new shares upon exercise of TR IELETT (b)
share options D 367,109 1,298,238 1,755 65
Transfer due to the abolition A FE R 1 Bl (@)
of par value upon the application (8622%) %R
of the Companies Ordinance RidEEmER
(Cap. 622) - - - 10,745,359
At 31 March R=A=t—H 3,567,747,535  3,567,380,426 10,925,483 10,923,728
Notes: BiFE
(@) The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares have (@ BAREAI(F622E)EM AT —NF=A

(b)

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

no par value since the commencement date of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (i.e., 3 March 2014). As of 3 March 2014, share
premium and capital redemption reserve amounted to approximately
HK$10,745,186,000 and HK$173,000, respectively were transferred
to share capital due to the abolition of par value upon the application
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

During the year ended 31 March 2015, 367,109 (2014: 1,298,238)
new shares in the Company were issued at prices of HK$3.27,
HK$3.14, HK$3.72 and HK$2.69 (2014: HK$1.19, HK$3.27, HK$3.14
and HK$2.69) per share upon exercise of share options granted on 3
August 2009, 21 April 2010, 10 August 2010 and 27 March 2012,
respectively (2014: share options granted on 5 February 2004, 3
August 2009, 21 April 2010 and 27 March 2012, respectively).

=H)i - AARWEEERANRERG T EERE -
RZZ—NE=A=H ' AEAARIKA(F622F)
BRI D E{E » #910,745,186,00058 7T Z A% 17 3%
8% 173,000 7T 2 IR A B Bl {5 2 RIS B AR A »

BE-ZT—AF=A=1T—HLFE  HHR=F
ZAFNA=HA - —ZT—FTFPA=-_+—H =%
—ZFENA+TBAR-ZE——FE=A=-++tAKRLEZ
BRECCET—NOF : PR =_ZTWF-_AAA
—EBETAENA=H ZE-EEN/ -_+—HEK
—E——F= A+ AR 2 ERE) B TR
REM3.278TT ~ 3148 7T ~ 3.728B T KR2.697% T
(ZZ—M4F : 11987 ~ 3278w - 3. 148 TR
2,698 7T ) 2 BH& TR R A)I367,109A (= ZF — WM
4 1 1,298,2380%) FAXD ©
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35.

36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

Share Capital — continued

All of the new shares issued rank pari passu with the then
existing shares of the Company in issue in all respects.

Reserves

Details of changes in reserves of the Group and the Company
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 63 and note 44 respectively.

Equity participant reserve represents gain on the surrender
which was granted to an existing shareholder of the Company
as at 24 November 2008, gain/loss on sale of certain assets/
liabilities to a Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Share-Based Payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
participants.

Under the share option scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options as an incentive to selected
participants, including Directors and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company at the price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be lower than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company on the date of
adopting the Scheme. An option may be exercised at any time
within ten years from the date, upon payment of HK$1 on
acceptance.

The offer of a grant of share options under the scheme may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer by the
grantee. The vesting and exercisable period of the share option
granted is determinable at the entire discretion of the Board of
Directors but the exercisable period will not exceed a period of
ten years immediate after acceptance of grant.

3.

36.

37.

R — &

AR ETHRMRETERERARERRAE
BEETRNFARFEER -

(G

AEBERARR 2 HEEBFBE D BB
SRS EHRFECIA K44 -

BRAZEAFHRER _ZZENF+T—A-+X
BRTARA—2REBRR 2 MR EIA R H
EHWNEERETARR —REERIERK
Rz Was, RS o

LURAD B ERE 2 K

AAREE—IAEBAERTEI([5HE)) - SR
HEArREE o

RIBBREE - ARARESFEMETSHE
E(EREERENBARRHBREERE
B EE2RENRESEEZERBEAR
At - HEABERNAHERATERSE@) K
DA R th B BRSSP 2 T (B ¢ B
ARRIBRMREER S BRI RER S B E
B2 IR WTE o ARERTEIR 2 ERE
Frf Rz B in &= 8B T B E R R At &1 B
HARF AR R RIARAD 48 5010% o RIS (517870
& - B P ER B HRER 51 04 PO (R AAT B
1718 »

RBEIR L BAE 2R TN ER B s
28HAARARAER - EREBREZEEH
RiTERHESEERNIBERE - BTEHAT
SHEBAEMEZRNR R I0FHRE -
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37. Share-Based Payments — continued 7. URGBARER IR —&
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share TEREZFAARARIEREFEREBREE
options and movements in such holdings during the year: &g
Details of share options held by employees (other than BARREE (EEHRINFE 2BREFH
Directors) of the Company are as follows: T
Subscription price per share Number of share options
BRARE BREHE
After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before  adjustment  adjustment  Exercisable at during during during at
Dateofgrant  adjustment 2007 2012 period 1.4.2014 the year the year the year 31.3.2015
R=2-B& R-%-1E
ZERtE %I BA-H £ ER Eh  ZR=1-R
RiLAH B3] B4 ARG S HALTRE BRI g B4% HA{TE
HKS HKS HKS
v BT iy

(noteTand2) (note Tand2) (note 1and2)
(k) (k) (FER2)

20.4.2004 1.54 142 141 20.4.2004t0 19.4.2014 572,945 = = (572,945) =
204.2004%19.4.2014

28.9.2005 143 132 131 28.9.20051027.9.2015 1,968 = = = 1,968
28.9.2005%27.9.2015

21.11.2007 = 6.56 650  27.11.20071026.11.2017 8,072,727 = = = 8,072,727
27.11.2007%26.11.2017

3.8.2009 = 330 327 3.82010102.8.2019 1,124,941 = = (181,636) 943,305
3820102282019

3.8.2009 = 330 327 382011102.82019 1,892,041 = = (181,636) 1,710,405
3820112282019

3.8.2009 = 330 327 382012102.82019 2,534,863 = (12,109 (242182) 2,280,572
3820122282019

2142010 = 317 314 21.420111020.4.2020 1,210,465 = (55,000) = 1,155,465
214.2011%20.4.2020

2142010 = 317 314 21.42012t020.4.2020 1,235,113 = = = 1,235,113
214.2012%20.4.2020

2142010 = 317 314 21.420131020.4.2020 1,687,220 = = = 1,687,220
214.2013%20.4.2020

10.8.2010 = 375 372 1082011109.8.2020 366,298 = (60,545) = 305,753
10.8.201129.8.2020

10.8.2010 = 375 372 1082012109.8.2020 366,298 = (39,455) (21,09 305,753
10.8.201229.8.2020
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37. Share-Based Payments — continued 37. AR BER AR &
Subscription price per share Number of share options
BHAEE EREYA

After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding

Before  adjustment  adjustment  Exercisable at during during during at

Dateofgrant adjustment 2007 2012 period 1.4.2014 the year the year the year 31.3.2015

H=2-m% RZ5-1%

IE83tE CE-CF HA-H £/ £ g =ZA=t-A

RiAH BT B4 L RS WA Bl B BAN HA{TE
HKS HK$ HKS
o AL AL

(noteTand2) (note Tand2) (note 1and2)
(k) (k) (ER2)

10.8.2010 = 375 372 1082013109.8.2020 488,400 = = (80,728) 407,672
10.8.201329.8.2020

213.2012 = = 269 27.9.20121026.3.2022 7,043,314 = (100,000) (243332) 6,699,982
279.2012%26.3.2022

213.2012 = = 269 27.12.201310 26.3.2022 7,043,314 = (100,000) (243332) 6,699,962
27.12.2013226.3.2022

213.2012 = = 269 27320151026.3.2022 7,043,372 = = (343,336) 6,700,036
273.2015%26.3.2022

283.2014 = = 335 2832015027.3.2024 8,520,000 = = (360,000) 8,160,000
28.3.2015%27.3.2024

283.2014 = = 335 28320161027.3.2024 8,520,000 = = (360,000) 8,160,000
28.3.2016%27.3.2024

283.2014 = = 335 283201710273.2024 11,360,000 = = (480,000) 10,880,000
28.3.2017%27.3.2024

69,083,279 = (367,109 (3310217) 65405953

No. of exercisable

share options
ATiERESE 46,365,953
Weighted average

exercise price
MEHETRE HK$3 4977 - HK$306T  HKS285ET  HKS352%%
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37. Share-Based Payments — continued 37. LRt BER 2R — &
Details of share options held by the Directors are as follows: RESEE ZBREFBEOT
Subscription price per share Number of share options
BHAEE EREYA
After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before  adjustment  adjustment  Exercisable at during during during at
Dateofgrant  adjustment 2007 2012 period 1.4.2014 the year the year the year 31.3.2015
R=2-B& R-8-1F
ZERtE %I BA-H £ £ Eh  ZR=1-A
RiAH Eil il L RS WA Bl g B4% HA{TE
HKS HK$ HKS
iy B BT

(noteTand2) (note Tand2) (note 1and2)
(k) (k) (FER2)

3.8.2009 = 330 327 382010t02.8.2019 605,454 = = = 605,454
38.2010£2.8.2019
3.8.2009 = 330 327 3820111028.2019 1,210,908 = = = 1,210,908
38.201122.8.2019
3.8.2009 = 330 321 382012102.8.2019 2,011,639 = = = 2,011,639
38.2012£2.8.2019
2732012 = = 269 27.9.20121026.3.2022 999,999 = = = 999,999
279.2012£263.2022
2732012 = = 269 27.12.20131026.3.2022 1333332 = = = 1333332
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
2732012 = = 269 27.3.20151026.3.2022 1333336 = = = 1,333,336
273.2015%263.2022
2832014 = = 335  283.20151027.3.2024 2,700,000 = = = 2,700,000
283.2015%27.3.2024
2832014 = = 335  283.20161027.3.2024 2,700,000 = = = 2,700,000
283.2016£27.3.2024
2832014 = = 335 283.20171027.3.2024 3,600,000 = = = 3,600,000
283.2017£27.3.2024
16,494,668 - - - 16,494,668
No. of exercisable
share options
ATfeERESE 10,194,668
Weighted average
exercise price
MEHaTRE HK$3.19%7 = = - HK$3.19%T
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37. Share-Based Payments — continued 37. AR BER AR &
Details of share options held by other participants of the AR RHMBEERG 2 BREFFENAT

Company are as follows:

Subscription price per share Number of share options
SRARE BREHE

After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding

Before  adjustment  adjustment  Exercisable at during during during at

Dateofgrant  adjustment 2007 2012 period 1.4.2014 the year the year the year 31.3.2015

N-g-mE R-2-1&

cBRtE R-CF BA-H Fh £ Ex  ZA=t-A

RHAH B BER BER  RR HRGE BRH Bfife BN HATTR
HKS HK$ HKS
BT B AT

(noteTand2) (note Tand2) (note 1and2)
(k) (k) (FER2)

20.4.2004 1.54 142 141 20.4.2004t0 19.4.2014 371,037 = = (371,037) =
204.2004%19.4.2014

3.8.2009 = 330 327 3.82010102.8.2019 2,123,305 = = = 2,123,305
3820102282019

3.8.2009 = 330 327 382011102.82019 2,346,132 = = = 2,346,132
3820112282019

3.8.2009 = 330 327 382012102.82019 3,128,182 = = = 3,128,182
3820122282019

2142010 = 317 314 21.420111020.4.2020 3,409,227 = = (15,136) 3,394,091
214.2011220.4.2020

2142010 = 317 314 21.42012t020.4.2020 3575178 = = (15,136) 3,560,042
214.2012%20.4.2020

2142010 = 317 314 21.420131020.4.2020 4,766,984 = = (20,182) 4,746,802
21.4.2013%220.4.2020

10.8.2010 = 375 372 1082011109.8.2020 605,454 = = = 605,454
10.8.201129.8.2020

10.8.2010 = 375 372 1082012109.8.2020 605,454 = = = 605,454
10.8.201229.8.2020

10.8.2010 = 375 372 1082013109.8.2020 807,273 = = = 807,273
10.8.201329.8.2020

213.2012 = = 269 279.20121026.3.2022 10,749,989 = = (33333 10,716,656
279.2012%26.3.2022

213.2012 = = 269 27.12.20131026.3.2022 10,749,989 = = (33333 10,716,656
27.12.2013226.3.2022

213.2012 = = 269 27320151026.3.2022 10,750,022 = = (33334) 10,716,688
273.2015%26.3.2022
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

37. Share-Based Payments — continued

37. LR AER AR — &

Subscription price per share Number of share options
BRIEE BREHE
After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before  adjustment  adjustment  Exercisable at during during during at
Date of grant  adjustment 2007 2012 period 142014 the year the year the year 31.3.2015
R=2-BF R=%-I1F
g8RtE C®-CF mA-H £/ £ R =ZA=t-H
RiAH HEh il L RS AT B 5tid 4N WA
HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT AT
(note1and2) (note1and2) (note T and2)
(Wik2) (k) (MHR2)
2832014 - - 335 28320151027.3.2024 4,650,000 - - - 4,650,000
28.3.2015%27.3.204
2832014 - - 335 28320161027.3.2024 4,650,000 - - - 4,650,000
28.3.2016%27.3.204
2832014 - - 335 28320171027.3.2024 6,200,000 - - - 6,200,000
28.3.2017%27.3.204
69,488,226 - - (521,491) 68,966,735
No. of exercisable
share options
AT ERESE 58,116,735
Weighted average
exercise price
ETIRE HK$3.00% 7 = - HK$1823T  HKS3.01#7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED HNANG[AL %“TATEMIENTS

For the year 31 March 2015 #Z—

37. Share-Based Payments — continued

Notes:

1. As a result of the open offer issue of the Company on 22 August
2007 and rights issue on 20 March 2012, the number of share
options and the exercise prices have been adjusted in accordance
with the requirements of Rule 17.03 (13) of the Listing Rules and the
supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5 September
2005.

2. The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately preceding the
date of grant of 20 April 2004, 28 September 2005, 27 November
2007, 3 August 2009, 21 April 2010, 10 August 2010, 27 March 2012
and 28 March 2014 were HK$1.48, HK$1.43, HK$6.56, HK$3.25,
HK$3.15, HK$3.71, HK$2.69 and HK$3.34, respectively.

3. During the year ended 31 March 2014, options were granted on 28
March 2014 at the exercise price of HK$3.35. The estimated fair value
of the options granted on that date is approximately HK$75,012,000.
No share options were granted during the year ended 31 March 2015.

The vesting period ends on the date the exercisable period of
the share options begins.

The vesting period for the share options granted are ranging
from one to three years from the date of grant. In addition,
for certain share options granted on 21 April 2010, 10 August
2010 and 28 March 2014, they were conditionally granted to
certain eligible participants of the Company which were subject
to the achievement of the performance targets as determined
by the Board.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was
HK$4.74 (2014: HK$4.27).

Share options granted to other participants are measured
at fair values of options granted as these other participants
are providing services that are similar to those rendered by
employees.

r © 81 ¥ ¥R = Bl 5E
—RFZA=St-HLFE

37. LR AER AR — &

Wi

1. BELEHRAIE17.03013) 2 REMBLANR-F
THFENARBEL 2 H7IES| - BIRESHE kT
FEEEEARARR =TT LENA=+-ARMA%E
ERMRR-E——F= A -+ RETERMEL
HEE o

2. ARRABROHREBERLEAH-_"TTEFNA=1
H —ZETRFNAAZFTNR  ZZET+F+—A
—+tA ZEEAFNAZA  —B2-ZTFNA
Zt+—R - ZF-TFN\ATA - ZF—%F=A
—t+EBER=T—NMF=A=t/\BAIZKTES
Bl A1.4878 7T © 1.438 7T * 6.56/8 7T * 3.25/8 T
3158TT » 3.7 18T © 2.69B 7T %3.3487T °

3. HE-Z-HNF=-A=t+—HLEE" =g
i_ﬁf*H\E!?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁﬁﬂ@iﬁﬁ&%ﬁm °
Mz B B AR ) il 5t A (B #) 575,012,000
BT - BE_ZT-—HAF=ZA=1+—BLLEEWXLH
P B AR A o

BEAN BT MR A SR -

RiBEkEsc RERARLASE—==F -
N MR —_F—FFOA_+—H  —F—
ZENATAR-_ZF-OF=A_tN\BERH
ZETHBERENS  EAGRUEERTARRS
TEERSHEE  HARFERETEMEZR
HEER  TAEE -

RENBITEZBREMS - KT
EFHRERAITAET(ZFT—OF : 4278
L) °

MR RS E M2 RBERME R EEBRRHE
FRL > WAEMSEER R ZBRERRH
BT ERE
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

37. Share-Based Payments — continued

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model. The
inputs into the model for share options granted on 28 March
2014 were as follows:

37. LR AER AR — &

ZERATERA-BEARAGFE - R-ZT—N
F=HA -+ N\BRH 2 BRERR R ABUEN
™

28 March 2014
—E-E=A=+/\H

Share price as at grant date FHAHZRE
Exercise price 1T1E(E
Expected volatility TEHR 1R
Remaining life TR 4F BR
Risk-free rate B
Expected dividend yield TRHARR B e
Exercise multiple TR fEE

Exit rate RH=

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the grant date
for previous ten years. The exercise multiple was to account for
the early exercise behaviour of the share options granted by
the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in comprising
the fair value of share options are based on Director’s best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions.

HK$3.34/& 7T
HK$3.35/5% 7T
51.60%

10 years#
2.26%

0%
1.29-2.30
0% —27.90%

BEHKERAB R L BB+ F 2 AR BRERE
SEORIREETE o TTRMEBUIRIARBARRFEK
HEBRE 2 IR TETT A

—EABAE B BREY ATE « 2R
BREATERAE Y 2ERBRONEER
(R AR - BRI EET B E T EBER
PENCE e
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38. Retirement Benefit Schemes

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

38. R RAE A&

RN EIEFR

2015 2014
—E-RfF —EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Contributions to mandatory R AEEETE
provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) ([3&&E£53 ] )H= 1,919 1,543
Contributions to PRC state-managed THEEREIERARS
pension schemes FHEIEK 21,682 20,347
Amount charged to consolidated wirEaERR
statement of profit or loss and Hib 2 mies ik
other comprehensive income Bk 2 358 23,601 21,890

The Group ceased to operate the defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustee. The Group now only participates in the MPF Scheme
for all employees in Hong Kong which is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the Scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of pension schemes operated by the Chinese
local government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the relevant cost of the basic payroll of
these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contribution.

AEETHEFEREBZ BN EGOIEM
RERKEE - ZAtB 2 EERAEB 2 EE
PHRE  YAESTHAFKAMRBBILEE
ABRE - AEERBESEBMATEREREM
RGBT S RIS R BRI R B R
a2 ET I ERPI R 98 B 1 AT 2 B IR R
BECAECEERARE 2 EED FMERIE -
WARESHARKAMRXHBIAEAETE - R
EaRiEes a2 RR - BEREREET AR
BERRAEEZ LR AZABIER - AEEH
MBI - BEERAREEELRE
ZBER o BRI 208 WA SRR A R S R
RIRFER N Z K

ARARRRPEZHBELARAEREERTH
W BATEEZ RKREFEIKE - ZEHMER
AIEERZEREZABEAFERAZET
BOLLAZERARESFEIHRK  (EREFHES -
AEEBFHRABNASZE-—BEETARELR

TEZ B
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

39.

40.

Operating Lease Arrangements 39 REMEERH
The Group as lessee REBERAMBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R EEAR - AL ERERA A BEE AL &0 &
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- HR BRI NHERSZ X NHNT
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
2015 2014
—E-EHF —T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —FR 12,529 8,273
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEETF(BEEEME) 9,282 21,355
21,811 29,628
Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 1 to 5 years. HEFHEE AN T 1255 -
Commitments 40. 7&iE
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ET-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T

Expenditures contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of:

Acquisition of property, plant and

ERTHERNGA I BHRERA
R BE 2R

BAYE  BERRERSET

equipment and ponies 14,100 24,459
Development expenditure of FEEFREMEZ BERAX
investment properties under (MI3E)
construction (note) 12,669,149 13,453,928
Development expenditure of properties SHEME 2 BERFSY (W)
for sale (note) 5,744,924 4,435,282
18,428,173 17,913,669
Note:  Future committed capital expenditures to be incurred up to 2018. BizE : BEAEBNR-T— \Ef4e s RARERNEY -
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41. Related Party Transactions N BEAEALRS
The Group'’s transactions with related parties are as follows: AEBEHEBEBAT 2R ST ¢
2015 2014
—E-RF —T e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Transactions with related companies HESRERBREEEHRERZ
in which the ultimate controlling BEARIZRS
shareholder has beneficial interests:

— Interest expenses on loan from —REEFRZFERZ*

a shareholder* - 92,410
— Interest expenses on loan from —BEARERZFERZ*

a related company* 448,423 138,987
— Interest expenses on Convertible — T —FR TRk ES 2

Bonds due 2014* BRI * - 5,839
— Project management fee income* (note) —I8H &I & WA *(FizE) 2,623 2,633
— Purchase of wine products* —BEEEER* 1,107 6,718
— Purchase of smart phone products* —BESRETFHER 272 6,134
*  These transactions constituted connected transactions or continuing * ZESSER ETBNEUVAZRAEZHERS

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. HIFBEEELS
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For the year 31 March 2015 EZ=Z

41,
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—RFZASTALFE

Related Party Transactions — continued

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2012, Goldin Properties (Construction
Management) Limited (the “Project Manager”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a project management agreement (the
“Project Management Agreement”) with Smart Edge Limited (the
“Developer”), a subsidiary of GFHL which is ultimately controlled by Mr.
Pan, in respect of the appointment of the Project Manager by the Developer
to manage the construction and development of a piece of land parcel
located in Hong Kong (the “Project”) on behalf of the Developer from 1
November 2011 until the date of settlement of the final account in respect
of the Project which was expected to be a date not later than the end of
February 2017. The estimated aggregate project management fee paid
and payable by the Developer to the Project Manager under the Project
Management Agreement should amount to approximately HK$11,700,000.

Pursuant to the supplemental agreement entered into during the year, the
date of settlement of the final account of the Project is extended to be a
date not later than the end of the June 2018 and the estimated aggregate
project management fee paid and payable by the Developer shall be
increased to approximately HK$14,820,000 accordingly.

M BEALTRE &

W

REE-ZT——-F=A=1T—HILLFE ' AR2F2EKHB
ARl -=EYEEEIREE)ERAF(EEEEAL
HERSR(RELERKIEZES) ZHBAR - BEFRA
A([#EEDIIEEEEH A ((HEEEHRE]) N
ERBRERZTEEERA  RXBEREE —BLR
BB ZMR([ZER D ERRER A —F+—
A—BREZEEA 2H&EBERRENBR(EATER=Z
—tFZAR)IE - FREREER ERRED N RERS
FHEEBTEAZGEEEEEERA£4/411,700,000%

JT °

IRIEENET N 2 /7 s - 5278 B 2 AR B HIE
EETER-Z—/\FRAK ' URBEEBCHNREMNZ
AETTEE B2 E AARE SRS N E L 414,820,000%8
i o

Details of the Group's related party balances are disclosed in BRAREBAEA T FIERTE 2 FIERERE B
the consolidated statement of financial position and respective AR Sk SR AR AR FE#E R -
notes.
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEE A S 2 FH N
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as follows: EERNFAZHHOT
2015 2014
—B-HF —T—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short-term benefits 5 R 47,804 38,650
Post-employment benefits BERLZ 12 F 276 235
48,080 38,885
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the EEYMEFNES e L REARA LT RE
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of BB ESIBET -

individuals and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

n B BT §5 4R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 are as follows:

2. TEMBATFERE

RIE—AF=ZA=+—BER=_ZFT—HNF=A
=t+—H ' ARRZEBMBARGFBOT :

Place of Paid up issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ ordinary Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation share capital equity interests held by the Company Principal activities
R/ 2/ #rERT/
WEARER EENY EfEERA KAAFRRER D IEXHK
2015 2014
—E-IF —ZT-EF
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
HE 54 Bk ik
Goldin Properties Group Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% ~ Provision of administrative
Limited BE 187 services
ARt ESEERAR RATHIRR
Proman International Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding
REERERAT Bk 187 RERER
Goldin Properties (Tianjin) PRC* RMBS5,227,575,000 - 100% - 100% Investment holding,
Company Limited R AK5,227,575,0007C property development
RSE(KE)ERAH and investment
RERR  MEERRRE
Tianjin Huading Real Estate ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% = 100% Property development
Company Limited i AR100,000,0007T nEER
REEREXRRAT]
Tianjin Goldin International ~ PRC* US$168,600,000 100% - 100% - Hotel and polo club operation
Club Company Limited HE* 168,600,0005 T BERSHREER
RERRERALBERAR
Fonde Hotels Group Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% = 100% Provision of hotel
BEREEESEER Bk 1T management services
ARAT REEEER R
Goldin Properties Real Estate  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% = 100% Provision of sales and
Agency Limited BE 187 marketing services
BREREERAR RAHE R SRR
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries RETENBABEFE &
— continued
Place of Paid up issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ ordinary Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation share capital equity interests held by the Company Principal activities
R/ BrERmT/
WEAREE EEBY EfEERA FARERERD TEER
2015 2014
—E-1f —Z-F
Directly  Indirectly Directly ~ Indirectly
E# 5t Bk itk
Metrapolo Country Club Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Provision of consultancy
Management Company BE 187 services on polo club
Limited operation
ROGRERANERERAR RS E R
Goldin Metropolitan Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Provision of polo club
International % 17T membership services
Club (Hong Kong) Limited RESREeRRS
BRRTERSTRE(FE)
BRAF
Goldin Properties Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Provision of project
(Construction Management) &7 187 management services
Limited RUUER B2 R
BRNFE(BETIRER)
BRAF

*  These companies were established in the PRC in the form of wholly-
owned foreign enterprise.

ZERBAINEBE DR AT B ©

Notes: BiFE

(@) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31 March (a)
2015 or at any time during the year.

(b) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the (b)
opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally affected the
results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. Major Non-Cash Transaction

n B BT §5 4R % B 5F

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

43. TEHFRERF

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the loan of
US$426,038,000 (equivalent to HK$3,303,500,000) together
with principal sum advanced to the Group from Goldin Group
(Investment) Limited and the respective interest payable was
assigned, and the Group’s rights, benefits and obligations
contemplated under the original loan agreement and
supplemental loan agreements with Goldin Group (Investment)
Limited were transferred to a related company, Goldin Special
Situations, in which Mr. Pan has a beneficial interest.

44. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve

Movements of the Company

Statement of financial position of the Company

HE-Z-NE=A=1t—HUIEE 5
BEB(EREBE)BERAAETAERN—%
426,038,000 7t (#8551 3,303,500,0007% 7T )
BERERANSEREAARMFE - REFR
SE(EE)BR AR 2 REF & k7
ERpE T2 ASENBRBAES - Az kB
T h—HEEE—MEEQR © SRR
S(HEPELEHRAE S ED)

44, KRB AR RBRREEEE

D BB AR R Rk

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8
2015 2014
—E-REF —E—uE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current assets EMENE EE
Property, plant and equipment I E = 397 567
Intangible assets B EE 20 920
Investments in subsidiaries (note) M B A AR E (Hfsx) 2,913,782 2,579,458
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI 15,905,207 14,057,426
18,819,476 16,637,541
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables, prepayments and H b fEYGRIE
deposits A FE R ES 21 36
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEY 1,631 4,777
1,652 4813
Current liabilities mMENAE
Other payables Hth e 208 1,657 2,088
Amount due to a related company FES —EEEE R RIFIA 53,817 35,940
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT BT A B F0E 140,605 140,617
Tax payable FESF 1,996 1,996
198,075 180,641
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

44. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015 168

Movements of the Company — continued

Statement of financial position of the Company — continued

44.2|x§ﬁf!ﬁ§ﬂﬁ>‘ﬁ$ﬁé€&ﬁ1%%§

m

KRB BARR HRR — &

As at 31 March

R=B=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Net current liabilities mEaEEE (196,423) (175,828)
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRREAEE 18,623,053 16,461,713
Non-current liability FERBEE
Loan from a related company EATIERK 7,473,247 5,019,123
11,149,806 11,442,590
Capital and reserves BR7N R (&
Share capital [N 10,925,483 10,923,728
Reserves E 224,323 518,862
Total equity TS iERE 11,149,806 11,442,590

Note:  Investment in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
24 June 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pan Sutong
DIRECTOR
BE

Mk MEBARRERRARSEAD BBIBERSRER
SEARR R BARRIRE ° AR FHRE R R ER

REHHB AR EBEAR -

BESeR 2 RF A +HBHERK
R Wl FIIEFRREE

Zhou Xiaojun
BARE
DIRECTOR
BF
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For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—HF=-A=+—HIFE

44, Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 44. Zk’é\ﬁlﬂii%#iﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Movements of the Company — continued &
Reserve movements of the Company RAB)REEE
Share-hased Equity Capital
Share  compensation participant ~ redemption  Translation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RVEE  ROMERE RASEARE  RARERRE RERE ZiTER &t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr Thr Thn TE TE Th
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=#NA-A 10,738,752 172,564 (53,700) 173 687,035 (19,504) 11,525,320
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (277,583) (277,583)
Other comprehensive REFEMRHRY
expense for the year - - - - (11,882) - (11,842)
Total comprehensive expense  AEE2ERTEE
for the year - - - - (11,842) (277583) (289,425)
Recognition of equity-settled  BERAMRALEE RS
share-based payments BEB 5 - 24,470 - - - - 24,470
Exercise of share options {EEE 6,434 (2,578) - - - - 3,856
Lapse of share options BERRER - (2,895) - - - 2,895 -
Transfer due to the aboliion ~ RERAFEAI£625)
of par value upon EERROEENEE
the application of the (BzE)
Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) (note) (10,745,186) = = (173) = - (10,745,359)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME
=h=t-H - 191,561 (53,700) - 675,193 (294,192) 518,862
Loss for the year REEFR - - - - - (353,801) (353,801)
Other comprehensive income  AEFE2EME
for the year - - - - 1721 - 1721
Total comprehensive income  AEE2ERE(FR)
(expense) for the year Fik - - - - 7721 (353,801) (346,080)
Recognition of equity-settled  BEANRALE AR
share-based payments REREZf3 - 52,175 - - - - 52,175
Exercise of share options 78k % - (634) - - - - (634)
Lapse of share options BERRERAT - (3,575) - - - 3,575 -
At 31 March 2015 W=E-1f
ZR=t-H - 239,527 (53,700) - 682,914 (644,418) 24,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
56 B B R KRB 5

For the year 31 March 2015 &2 —T—FHAF =—A=+—HILFE

44, Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 44. ZIK’é\ﬁE!ﬂ&?r‘lﬁ)‘Riﬁi%&ﬁﬁ%E}J

Movements of the Company — continued ]

Reserve movements of the Company — continued RATREER &

At 31 March 2015, the Company’s distributable reserves consist RZTE—RAF=ZA=+—8 ' ARFZAH#S

of accumulated losses of approximately HK$644,418,000 K (i B 78 25T 1R #644,418,0008 7T (= F

(2014: HK$294,192,000). —PO4F : 294,192,000 7T) °

Note:  The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares have izt : BARKA(Fe2E)EMBEH(BI =N
no par value since the commencement date of the Companies =A=H)# « AAENEEERARER
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (i.e., 3 March 2014). As of 3 March 2014, HYEERE R-ZT—HWF=A=H ' BE
share premium and capital redemption reserve amounted to ARRMEHI(F622F ) BEKRKRMNEE - 4
approximately HK$10,745,186,000 and HK$173,000, respectively 10,745,186,0007% 7t 2 & 17 ¥4 {8 & 173,000/ 7T
were transferred to share capital due to the abolition of par value 2 IRZRRE B 2 BB B AR o

upon the application of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A7 X ik =2

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1t—HLEFE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—B-Hf 0 —T-WFE —F-=F —T-—F —F——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET TAET TAT FET
RESULTS S
Revenue e 569,350 2,793,413 128,976 57,079 -
Profit before tax M5 A Al 1,056,776 1,401,327 281,801 467,088 234,543
Income tax expense FT{3HiF < (401,910) (545,739) (213,833) (17,372) (112,619)
Profit for the year FREmA 654,866 855,588 67,968 449,716 121,924
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—B-1F ZTMmF ZT-=F FT-F —FT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET TAET TAT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERERE
Total assets BEME 33,648,872 28,013,934 23,267,512 18,221,197 15,108,768
Total liabilities BERE (16,958,871) (12,048,813) (8,106,398) (3,413,549) (8,813,135)
Total equity TR fEEE 16,690,001 15,965,121 15,161,114 14,807,648 6,295,633
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
KBzMEFHES

Details of the Group’s properties held as at 31 March 2015 are as

RIZB-—RAF=A=+—H FXEEFFZWEF

follows: =L
Approximate
GFA Stage of Anticipated
Location Type Percentage (sq.m.) Leaseterm  completion completion date
B4
BREEE
2 k] Aot (ErXK) HEH TR E BHEIAH
Properties held for ~ PRC Commercial/ 100% 1,121,243 Medium Under construction 2016, in phases
investment m Office 2) i e “ERE
FEREME [SEY NS al12
Properties for sale  PRC Residential 100% 709,090 Long Under construction 2013 to 2015,
HEME F FE R TEEh in phases
“T—=fZF
1%
N
Hotel properties PRC Hotel 100% 58,000 Medium Completed 2011
B HE BIE g BER 25
1,888,333
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Goldin Properties Holdings Limited
EREEZERAERAF
Stock Code Pz 5%: 283

22nd Floor, Two International Finance Centre,
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